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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEhEEBEERASEN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan (former name was Mr. Eav Ming
Keong, Kinson), aged 46, holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Interior
Design and Technology and a Master of Arts degree in Art, Design
and Visual Culture from the London Guildhall University. After
graduation, he practiced in an architecture firm in London for 2 years.
He was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 22nd
November 2006 and acted as a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company before his resignation from the Board of Directors
on 21st August 2015 as he wanted to devote more time for his
personal business at that time. Mr. Eav has remained as a consultant
of the Company and its subsidiaries since 21st August 2015. He
was appointed as a director of three subsidiaries of the Company in
February, April and May 2018, respectively and he was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 11th October 2018. Mr. Eav is
the brother of Ms. Eav Xin Qi Rosanna, who is an Executive Director of
the Company and the son of Ms. Lam Kim Phung who is a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Eav Xin Qi Rosanna (former name was Eav Guech Rosanna),
aged 51, holds a Bachelor of Business Administration Degree in
Marketing from Adelphi University in the U.S.A. She is currently the
chief executive officer of Time City (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company. Before joining the Group in 1993, she worked in a major
international US Bank specializing in local corporate companies. Ms.
Eav is the sister of Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan, who is an Executive
Director of the Company and the daughter of Ms. Lam Kim Phung who
is a controlling shareholder of the Company. She was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 21st August 2015.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming, aged 63, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and an associate member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 8th August 1998. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lai was
elected as the Vice Chairman, General Practice Division of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors during the years from 2001 to 2003. Mr.
Lai has been practicing as a professional surveyor since 1983 and has
considerable experience in the property field. Mr. Lai is an existing
independent non-executive director of Guorui Properties Limited which
was listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 7th July
2014. Mr. Lai holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from
Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent, aged 51, has around 30 years’
experience in accounting and auditing and is the sole proprietor of
a firm of Certified Public Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr.
Lee is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Master Degree in Corporate Finance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th December
2006. He is the chairman of the remuneration committee and also a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company.

Mr. Kee Wah Sze, aged 73, is a partner of Messrs. Michael Cheuk,
Wong & Kee and is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong for over 39 years
specialized in both commercial and conveyancing fields. He is a Notary
Public of Hong Kong, a China Appointed Attesting Officer and holder
of Master Degree in Chinese and Comparative Law of City University
of Hong Kong and Master Degree in Law of the People’s University of
the PRC. He was an independent non-executive director of Shougang
Fushan Resources Group Limited (Stock Code: 639), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, from April 1997 to June 2021.

Mr. Kee was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 10th August 2020. He is also a member of the nomination
committee, the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, aged 53, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Cheng
has more than 20 years experience in finance and accounting. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and a Master of Science
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIBE515m N i
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS npcS D
2021 2020 Change
—E-—F —E_TF 25
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET B & BT

Operations
Revenue 46
Profit/(loss) attributable to BRARRFEAZER (BE) 59 140
the Company
Earnings/(loss) per 7.84 140
HK cents HK cents
7.843A (19.56)7 11l
Change
25
%
Financial positio
Total assets 1
Equity attributable to owne ENARERA AR 414 21

Company

AF A AR Annual Report 2021 |7



a3 R
= EEEE

Fithss EHIE

Timecity
Beijing Parkview Green
Cartier Boutique

rEaa 8 R
R RAES

"X FHIE

Timecity

Beijing Oriental Plaza
Jaeger-LeCoulire
Boutique

758 A R
[ERANELES

REx FHIE

Timecity
NanTong Yaohan Store
IWC Boutique



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Business Review

The Group’s revenue for the year amounted to HK$1,165 million
which was 46% higher than HK$800 million in last year. The “Sale of
watches” segment continued to play a key role this year and increased
its revenue by 45% from HK$787 million to HK$1,143 million this
year due to the good performance in the retail stores in China. On the
other hand, the business in the “Properties leasing” segment derived
a revenue of HK$13 million this year, an increase of 63% as compared
with last year of HK$8 million due to the full year effect of a material
tenancy.

S B51m MK i
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As at As at
31st March 31st March
2021 2020
R-ZE=-—F RIZ_ZTHF
=A=+-8B =A=+—8
Beijing e 5 2 2
Shanghai s 3 3
Xiamen = 1 1
Nantong e 38 1 1
Hong Kong B 0 1
7 8

Financial Review fil 75 @ A

Results review KA

For the year ended 31st March 2021, the Group’s revenue amounted
to HK$1,165 million, representing an increase of 46% as compared
with HK$800 million in last year. Increase in revenue was mainly due to
the good performance of the retail stores in China. Gross profit margin
decreased by 5% to 20% as compared with last year was due to
intense competition during the year.

Distribution costs this year amounted to HK$119 million which was
26% lower than HK$161 million in last year. Such decrease was due to
the decrease in amortization charges for right-of-use assets as a core
right-of-use asset had been fully impaired in the second half of last
year.

Administrative expenses decreased by 19% to HK$38 million as
compared with HK$47 million in last year which was mainly due to the
decrease in bank charges, consultancy fee and director’s remuneration.

Valuation gains on investment properties amounted to HK$3 million in
this year as compared with valuation losses of HK$17 million in last
year as the property market in London in particular performed better as
compared with last year.

HEITZ - -—F=-A=1+—RItFE  AEB L% K
A1,165,000,0007 7T * #HE = FE 800,000,000
TLIEIN46% © s BIGIEEF EHRFESTEEMHRIE R
B-ARFRABFH  BHEEFE  TFERTHKE%
=20% ©

N E 58K AN £119,000,000%8 o0 0 B EFE
161,000,000/ 7T AE L N #626% » 1t T B — T AZ O
AEEENEFTEF2AEME SERZEAEER
E#HBERRD -

1TEE B+ 4F £47,000,000/8 7T L & BIEL 2 19%
738,000,000 7T« TEZMHRIBITER  BEEEBRES
B < 8k D BT R ©

REFIEE WS 2 B8 U A3,000,0008 7T © EFE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance costs amounted to HK$9 million in this year which was much
lower than that of last year amounting to HK$14 million was due to
decrease in the interest on lease liabilities.

Other net gains amounting to HK$15 million during this year as
compared with that of last year of HK$6 million. The amount this
year mainly comprised an one-off gain of HK$20 million due to the
reassessment of the lease liability upon rental reduction for some
stores. The amount in last year represented the gain from the disposal
of the unlisted equity investment.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31st March 2021, the Group’s total cash balance amounted to
HK$131 million (31st March 2020: HK$69 million).

Gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as a ratio of total borrowings
over total equity, was 40% as at 31st March 2021 (31st March 2020:
47%).

Foreign exchange risks

The Group views its main currencies as Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and Swiss Francs.

The Group monitors its exposure to foreign exchange risks and, when
it considers necessary and appropriate, will hedge its foreign exchange
risks by using financial instruments.

Prospect

Continued with the momentum brought from the first half of the
year, the Group achieved a net profit of HK$59 million as compared
with a net loss of HK$146 million in last year was due to the good
performance in the retail sales in this year and an one-off impairment
loss on right-of-use asset amounting to HK$97 million in last year.

The Group operates 7 stores in China. The Group remained focus on
its core stores and has streamlined their operating costs during the
year and will continue to do so with a view to further enhance the
cost efficiency of each store. The overall sentiment in the luxury retail
business in China was good. Looking ahead, the Group believes that
the sentiment will improve as the pandemic is under control.

Apart from the “Sale of watches” segment which continues to be the
core business of the Group, the Group is also developing its business
in the “Properties leasing” segment and acquired two residential
properties in London in previous years in addition to the key investment
properties located in Hong Kong.

The Group is determined to rebuild its financial strength and confidence
to improve its business and take a cautious approach in its future
expansion.

On behalf of the Group, we sincerely thank for the kind and positive
support of our shareholders, customers, suppliers and associates.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEBRS

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the
financial year are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2021 and the
state of the Company and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 44 to 46.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2021
is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 7 to 11.

Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 to 11 of this annual report and Note 33 to the
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators is set out in section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 11 of
this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

Details of the dividends are set out in Note 12 to the financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 18 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 14 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties during the year are
set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders and
movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Note 32 to the financial statements and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 27 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31st March 2021, the Group’s largest supplier
contributed approximately 85% of the total purchases for the year
and the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
top five suppliers represented approximately 99% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Since the customer base of the Group is very wide, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are approximately
32% of total sales during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owning more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on page 152.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, subject to the statues, every
Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/
her office. The Company has taken out insurance against the liability
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE8RS
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEBRS

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Eav Yin (former Chairman, passed away on 4th September 2020)
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan
Ms. Eav Xin Qi Rosanna

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lai Si Ming

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline (resigned on 20th July 2020)
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

Mr. Kee Wah Sze (appointed on 10th August 2020)

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-law of the Company, Mr. Eav Feng
Ming, Jonathan and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent shall retire by rotation
from office at the Annual General Meeting and shall be eligible and offer
themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

shares of aggregate

HK$0.2 each/ interests to

underlying total issued

shares held share capital

BESR BERGCORT

Name of Directors Nature of interest 02 TEER RA<4E%E

BEEpnE EEME HEROGHA BHBEDL

%

Ms. Eav Xin Qi Rosanna 15 ¥ a1 22 Personal {f A 2,087,472 0.28

Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan BIE 85 E Personal {8 A 707,400* 0.09
& All the 2,087,472 shares are personal interest of Ms. Eav Xin Qi Rosanna. n 152,087, 47238 D BB F & 4 @ AR -

* All the 707,400 shares are personal interest of Mr. Eav Feng Ming, * Fr/707,4000% %10 19 B 15 18 45 50 A A A 25 o

Jonathan.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31st March 2021, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to
be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. In addition, save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age had been
granted or had exercised any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Sub-Tenancy Agreement

On 15th November 2019, the Company as a principal tenant entered into
the Sub-Tenancy Agreement | with Honour Rich International Limited
(“Honour Rich”) (a connected person) as a sub-tenant, under which the
Company agreed to grant a tenancy of 3901-02, 39/F, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (“Hopewell property”)
to Honour Rich for a term of 26.5 months at a monthly rental of
HK$359,706. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
18th November 2019.

The Hopewell property will be rented by the Company and leased to
Honour Rich for the use as office.

Honour Rich is a company owned by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, who is the
controlling shareholder of the Company, the wife of Mr. Eav Yin (the
Chairman and executive director of the Company who has passed away
on 4th September 2020) and the mother of Ms. Eav Xin Qi Rosanna (an
executive director of the Company) and Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan
(an executive director of the Company), and hence are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
tenancy under the Sub-Tenancy Agreement | constitutes connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A.

Save for the information disclosed above, during the year, the Company
did not enter into any other transactions which constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions that were subject to
reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)

independent third parties; and

(c) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, auditors of the
Company, has confirmed to the Company regarding the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above that nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that:

1. the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors;

2. the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the terms governing such transactions; and

3. have exceeded the cap.

The Company confirmed that it has disclosed the continuing connected
transactions and the details of the continuing connected transactions
mentioned above pursuant to the disclosure requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31st March 2021, which may also constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in Note 35 to the
financial statements.

For those related party transactions that constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the case may
be) under the Listing Rules but are not disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, they are exempt from reporting,
annual review and independent shareholder’s approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed herein the section headed “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS”, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director of the
Company or his connected entities had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved

the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”).
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The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been expired on 20th September —EE_FEREFIAER_E——-FhLAZ-T+HBE
2012 and no new share option scheme has been adopted thereafter. N W AR ST B R AN o

The Company issued 146,800,000 and 34,170,000 share options to the
qualifying grantees to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in
the share capital of the Company under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 of which the exercise
prices were HK$0.394 per share and HK$0.263 per share respectively.
Upon the completion of the share consolidation and rights issue in
January 2013 and February 2013, the original numbers of issued share
options were adjusted from 146,800,000 and 34,170,000 to 43,056,440
and 10,022,061 respectively. In addition, both the exercise prices and
the numbers of share options have been adjusted according to the
2002 Share Option Scheme. After the completion of the further share
consolidation in July 2018, both the exercise price and the numbers
of the outstanding share options had been adjusted according to the

W—_E——F=ZA=+—BEk-_ZT——FF+A=-+X
B AARBEBE-_ST_FERENE RMEERE
¥ 7% %£17146,800,0001) }2.34,170,00017 Al RE AL
7&$¢thﬂ%%m2 BRI BT E
DR AEK0.394/8 L K 0.263E L - —E—=F— AKX
:%f—i AzZRBmERERTHKE  RE%ET
& A% 1 21 B 5 5l F1146,800,00017 %.34,170,00010 & &
43,056,44017 }210,022,06117 ° ItL4h - iRIE-TT —4F
BT E  BRENTTEERBBELEELAE - K
—E-N\FEARKE—FTRHEHE  RITEER
BZAFEEREEADRBREBRETE 2 IGRAE -
RZZE-—F=ZA=+—8 BHAFMEERECR-Z
Z—F=Z A=+ BRK - A EERITEZ BIE -

terms of the Share Option Scheme. As of 31st March 2021, there were
no outstanding share options as they were all lapsed on 30th March

2021.
No. of share No. of shares
options No. of share acquired on
outstanding options No. of share exercise of No. of share Period during Period during
at the granted options share options options which share which share Exercise
beginning during lapsed during during the outstanding options are options are price per
Grantees of the year the year the year year atyearend  Date of grant vested exercisable share
ERfik
AL ERRHZ EREYZ ERREG,  FRHAGEZ
ERA Ehise ERRgE ERRgE oL ERE®E RUAH BEREREZER  WAREREZER ShfkE
Directors
£z
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan 1,099,875 - (1,099,875) = - 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS2.688
30th March 2016 30th March 2021
FERLE Sy el S ﬁ-—Ei *i—:* A=1RE 2688 T
Z2-7EZAZTH i_ﬂ_fﬁ
Mr. Lai Si Ming 183312 - (183,312) 2 - st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS2.688
SOIh March 216 30th March 2021
BRALE F--Ffz1-A -ZESR- 1A% 2688 T
’*’-E RETH
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent 183,312 - (183,312) - - st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HK$2.688
30th March 2016 30th March 2021
FEELL 5-FZRt-8 ZF-CEZRCtRE -3 _i R=tRE 2688
ZE-EZRZTH T-EZR=H
1,466,499 - (1,466,499) - -
Employees 2,859,672 - (2,859672) - - st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS2.688
30th March 2016 30th March 2021
eI S o cA=tRE Z% *% ZA=tRE 26885
NEZAZTR ZRI-EZASTH
Mdm. Lam Kim Phung 1,466,500 - (1,466,500) - - st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS2.688
(administrator/executor of the 30th March 2016 30th March 2021
estate of Mr. Eav Ym)
Bt (Bl 5--FZR=t-B ZE5-CEZAStRE ZE3-CEZACtRE 26885
E-7FZA=tE EC-EZRE1A
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline 183,312 - (183,312) - - st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS2.688
(former director) 30th March 2016 30th March 2021
LT (ES) “§--EZfT-B C§-CECASTRE CEF-CECATHAE 26887
“E-REZAZTH “EC-FZf=1H
Total 5,075,983 - (6,975,983) - -
it
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The share options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant
of the share options on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 were
HK$0.39 and HK$0.26 respectively.

During the year, 5,975,983 share options were forfeited under the 2002
Share Option Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar Rights”,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year, was the Company
or any of its associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors or their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Director is
considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

In addition to the share options granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme as disclosed herein, on 13th September 2010, the
shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a share
award plan (the “Share Award Plan 2010”). The Share Award Plan
2010 is a ten-year discretionary share award and ownership plan. It is
primarily for encouraging or facilitating the holding of shares by those
selected employees of the Group who, as determined by the Board,
are eligible to participate in the plan and to whom new shares are or
will be awarded. The Directors will make use of the plan to award new
shares to those selected employees of the Group on suitable terms as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
Save as disclosed herein, the Company had no other outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 31st
March 2021 and there was no issue or exercise of any such other
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.

The Share Award Plan 2010 has been expired on 13th September 2020
already.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2021, so far as is known to any Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company or required to be notified under Section 336 of the SFO:

ETEIRRZIEDS

R-B-—F=A=+—R0 EREAARTEERE
EARABHA  THAL (ARAEEREBTRA
BRI RART 2B RARBBG P EAARFD %
TR AE% T % - IR B % RS (0 BXVE 2R
DM GEXAMARTBE RGN ARANEE
2B R R 5 R (DI 336 1A T A 2
HAAR -

Number of
ordinary shares
and underlying Approximate
shares (if any) percentage
Capacity of HK$0.2 of issued
Name of shareholder (Notes) Notes each held share capital
BESR2BTZ
545 EZERRHEAE HEBRTRE
RER AR (Bt &) Bt 3 BRG(W0E) 2R BB
%
Mdm. Lam Kim Phung e Bzt 6 1 441,459,400 59.09
Century Hero International Limited it 7 EIEX B R A A 7 2 291,210,668 38.98
Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Chanchhaya Trustee Holding
Corporation Corporation 7 3 59,176,800 7.92
Goodideal Industrial Limited Goodideal Industrial Limited 7 4 51,133,864 6.84
Covenhills Limited Covenhills Limited 7 5 64,255,243 8.60
Notes: s :

1. 7,379,600 shares are held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung and 434,079,800
shares represent the interest held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, as the
administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin. Among the 434,079,800
shares, (a) 30,202,800 shares are interest of the administrator/executor
of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin, (b) 291,210,668 shares by Century Hero
International Limited, (c) 932,400 shares by Debonair Company Limited, (d)
51,133,864 shares by Goodideal Industrial Limited, (e) 1,423,268 shares by
Goodness Management Limited and (f) 59,176,800 shares by Chanchhaya
Trustee Holding Corporation (as a trustee of Eav An Unit Trust). Century
Hero International Limited, Debonair Company Limited and Goodness
Management Limited are wholly owned and Goodideal Industrial Limited is
87% owned by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung who is the administrator/executor of
the estate of Mr. Eav Yin. Eav An Unit Trust is a discretionary trust of which
Mr. Eav Yin is the founder, the beneficiaries include Mdm. Lam Kim Phung
who is the administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin and her
children.

2. Century Hero International Limited is wholly owned by Mdm. Lam Kim
Phung who is the administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin.

3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation is the trustee of Eav An Unit
Trust, a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mdm. Lam
Kim Phung who is the administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin
and her children.

4. Goodideal Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung who is
the administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin.

5. Covenhills Limited is owned equally by the estate beneficiary of late Mr.
Leong Lou Teck, Mr. Leong Lum Thye, Miss Leong Yoke Kheng and Mr.
Leong Siew Khuen.

6. Beneficial owner; Administrator/Executor.

7. Beneficial owner.

20| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

1. 7,379,6000% f% 1 M #% & [l %2 = F7 45 B 12434,079,800
BREhDiEAREBARETAGLEEEECEEEREA
BB HIT A A 2 0 434,079,8000% & 19 ¢ (a)
30,202,800/ IR 7 B 15— £ 2 BEEIE A EB AT
AZ % ¢ (b) 291,210,668 A% 17 H t 1 B B A FR A 7]
548 : (c) 932,400/ % 7 H1Debonair Company Limited
#6  (d) 51,133,8640% % 1) FAGoodideal Industrial
Limited# & : (e) 1,423,268% % {5 #1Goodness
Management Limited$% & K.(f) 59,176,800/% % 15 A
Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation ({F ZEav
An Unit TrustZ 25t A) #6 cEHBEBEER QA -
Debonair Company Limited}2Goodness Management
Limited I RS- £ ZBEERA EBRITAMNEE
Z+%2&¥A - MGoodideal Industrial Limitedd151=
FEZEBEEBA EBRITAMNSBE L L HE87% -
Eav An Unit Trust 2 2 # =5 - L RZETZE
A RBSACEBCAEZEETRABEBRITA
e BZ+ Rz Fx-

2. WHERBRARABCEEZEEERA EBRT
AMEBRZEZEHE -

3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation& £ # {557

Eav An Unit TrustZ 25t A » ZERZXm ABEGC
SEZEEEERAN BRI AMEBELZLERE 2 FL -

4.  Goodideal Industrial Limited 5= e £ 2 BEEE A

BEERTAMES B AL L HE87% -

5.  Covenhills Limited A E M RABEBELEZEESH A

Leong Lum Thye’t & - Leong Yoke Kheng/J\#H &
Leong Siew KhuenZt £ 95 A -

6. EREAAEEBTEBAEBHRITA

7. EmBEAA-

7ot o e S AR B A IR A E



Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2021, there were no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company as having an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there is no restriction against such right under
Bermuda law.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 144 employees in the Group as at 31st March 2021. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees in line
with market trends. Incentives such as discretionary bonuses and
shares under share award plan are offered to motivate employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

Environmental policies

The Group puts great emphasis on environmental protection and
sustainable development. The conscientious use of resources and the
adoption of best practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its
commitment to safeguarding the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection, complies with environmental legislations
and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to its
employees. Several measures have been implemented by the Group in
order to promote environmental protection, including, among others:

(i) promoting energy saving by encouraging its staff to switch off
all air-conditioners and lightings before leaving the office, and to
utilise the timer-control function of all air-conditioning systems;

(i)  reducing energy consumption by using energy-saving light bulbs
in the corridors and the reception area of its offices;

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE8RS

B EXMEEEN  RZB-—F=A=+—H BE
H I AARR E%‘aEHﬂZ/\:t(ZK”&ET§$EEIEﬁ
BABERIN) WA R F A MBI D TS - MRE
B M HE R EXVEFE2 N B35 5 2 R AR AR

AWEZEEIORR - HAREEZ LB EPI5E336

EREINARRRETHRF2ELMAZERIAE
BhiEainE
ARBZARMATEBRELESRZBAT ME

FE AP I 8 52 IR R T e ANER 1 o

(HEE A5 &

RZE-_—F=A=+—8B AEEHXER144%E
B AEEEMLBEREEREABRFHZFHWA
A IR AR (BB IEAT KA SEEN R Bl R 2 R D
HEES -

o B

BEEZHMBRDBFHEESRT  RIZE
BETT

S
52 ERLEREEIM -

K AEECHEAFHEE e EREARRAREE
EARE R AT BTSRRI R EE

NBERE
REAARAEANECRENAAKREEHA
PR E s A B 2 RIS L T RRIE R E 2 A B
HRE -

BIBRERR

AEESEERRTRERAIFERR - REEKGH
RERE AR EBBRETEEERERIRREE
BE -ASERBRERENETRIZED  BOR

SEENRFRESH  AEERNE TRRRES
B BIEEANRR

() FEAZBEIMRNAZRAMME=H KR
TEAURGHAEARS TR IR ETEE

(i) BBREREMRAEZFERIEEMEERER D8

j/\;%%% ;

u

Annual Report 2021 |21



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEBRS

(iiiy promoting recycling by placing recycle bins next to printers for
collecting used papers for reusing and recycling purposes, and by
encouraging two-sided printing and/or the use of scratch papers;

(iv) reducing the use of disposable products by, for example,
cancelling the distribution of plastic bags in office; and

(v) reducing water consumption by replacing all water taps by
automatic faucets in offices.

The environmental, social and governance report will be uploaded
within three months after the publication of the annual report of the
Company to the websites of both The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the Company.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises employees as one of the valuable assets of
the Group and the Group strictly complies with the labour laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and regularly reviews the existing staff
benefits for improvement. The Group provides good quality services to
the customers and maintains a good relationship with them. The Group
is able to establish trusting and long-standing business relationships
with the major customers. The Group also maintains effective
communication and develops long-term and stable relationships
with its suppliers. During the year, there was no material dispute or
disagreement between the Group and its customers or suppliers.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year ended 31st March 2021 and up to the date of
this report, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the mainland China, Switzerland and Hong Kong that
have a significant impact on the Group.

Donations
During the year, the Group did not make any charitable donations.
Dividend Policy

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the Memorandum of
Association and New Bye-Laws of the Company, dividends may be
paid out of the profits of the Company, or subject to solvency of the
Company, out of sums standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors of the Company.
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Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Directors of the Company,
depending on results of operations, working capital, financial position,
future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other factors
which the Directors of the Company may consider relevant from
time to time. Any future declaration, recommendation and payment
of dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the historical
declarations and payments of dividends and will be at the absolute
discretion of the Directors of the Company. The Company does not
have any predetermined dividend payout ratio.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2021 have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

EXPRESSION OF GRATITUDE

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude
to all staff members, shareholders, bankers, customers, suppliers and

professional advisors for the sincere support to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Eav Xin Qi Rosanna
Director

Hong Kong, 28th June 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices by emphasising a quality board of directors,
sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year ended
31st March 2021 except for the deviation from the code provisions
A.2.1, A.4.1, A5.1, D.1.4 and those discussed below:

In respect of Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code, since the deceased
of Mr. Eav Yin as the Chairman on 4th September 2020, the position
of the Chairman has been vacant and has not been filled up as at the
date of this report while the function of the chief executive officer is
divided between the remaining executive directors. The Board of the
Company as a whole and the executive directors have discharged the
duties of the Chairman. The Board and the Nomination Committee of
the Company will continuously review and discuss the adjustment to
the composition of the Board.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private
act, the Asia Commercial Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act,
director holding office as executive chairman or managing director shall
not be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
as provided in the Bye-Laws.

As the Company is bound by the provision of the 1989 Act, at this time,
the Bye-Laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the requirements
of the Code. As such, a special resolution was passed at the special
general meeting held on 28th March 2007 to amend the Bye-Laws of the
Company so that, inter alia, (i) every director (save for a director holding
office as Chairman or Managing Director) of the Company shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years; (ii) a director
may be removed by an ordinary resolution in general meeting instead
of a special resolution; (iiij) any director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, instead of the next annual general meeting.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, the Chairman of
the Board will voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general
meeting of the Company at least once every three years in order for
the Company to comply with the Code, provided that being eligible for
re-election, he may offer himself for re-election at the annual general
meeting.

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, except for the newly appointment of Mr. Kee Wah Sze
as independent non-executive director of the Company for a term of
3 years commencing on 10th August 2021, the other non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are not less exacting than those in the Code.
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Code provision A.5.1 of the Code provides that the nomination
committee should be chaired by the chairman of the board or an
independent non-executive director. Since the deceased of Mr. Eav
Yin on 4th September 2020, the chairman of the nomination committee
has been vacant and has not been filled up as at the date of this
announcement. The Board will appoint the chairman of the nomination
committee as soon as practicable for filling such vacancy.

Code provision D.1.4 stipulates that directors should clearly understand
delegation arrangements in place. The Company should have formal
letters of appointment for directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointments.

Except for the newly appointment of Mr. Kee Wah Sze as independent
non-executive director of the Company in August 2020, the Company
has not entered into any written letters of appointment with its
Directors. However, the Board recognises that (i) the Directors have
already been subject to the laws and regulations applicable to directors
of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
including the Listing Rules as well as the fiduciary duties to act in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders; (i) all of them are
well established in their professions and (iii) the current arrangement
has been adopted by the Company for several years and has proven to
be effective. Therefore, the Board considers that the Directors are able
to carry out their duties in a responsible and effective manner under the
current arrangement.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner.

Compliance of the Model Code for Securities Transaction by
Directors of Listed Issuers

All Directors have confirmed that they complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors of the Company, all
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the year
ended 31st March 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and financial
performance. The management of the Group is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operation of the respective individual
business unit.
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The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 4 and 5 of this annual report.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
opinions raised by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of Executive and non-executive Directors also generates a
strong independent element on the Board, which allows independent and
objective decision making process for the best interests of the Company.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them to
be independent.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group. During the year, 5 Board meetings (including

EEeRRAMERTEER =R B IFRTESMN
HK - BEREBHNAFHE4NEE

EEeREARBEERRRAEBRIT 2B BRERE
B ARABZBIFPTEENETETA LIREZ
EREDRBRIEZOCEERER AP —RBIIF
HMITEEHE LTRAESI0QKT A EEEES
AHEBRIIEHERENR RTEENERTERZY
EHEKLEPIMARRAEEG 2B - B REE
B A R BB A AR R R 2 SEMEBIFTRE -

RARCEEERBIIFNTEFRIE ETRAIFE3.13
GRAEBISOMEL 2 EFEERER  MAQFR
RIABMIFNTESTOBBILAL

E=aEdRe UBRIAEEZHBREBRR -
AEE EFGRTARGE (BEFRUREHEFESS

4 regular board meetings) were held. Moreover, 2 Audit Committee ) o UON AFEERITMAEZEZEEEE  — X
meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meetings and 2 Nomination FTMEETCEZMNMARELEZESTSR  SEENX
Committee meetings were held during the year. The individual Femz b FELETEWT
attendance of Directors in these meetings was set out below:
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director meetings meetings meetings meetings
By ESgE8s EBNKZEEER PHZEE8E REZEE83
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Eav Yin (deceased on BLRE(RZZE_ZF
4th September 2020) JUA Y B EEt) 3/3 N/AT & N/AZ~iE A 2/2
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan ol-370 4 3/5 N/AT i F N/AT i N/AT i
Ms. Eav Xin Qi Rosanna mEHEZL 5/5 N/AZ i N/AT i F N/AT i F
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Lai Si Ming R L L 5/5 2/2 11 2/2
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline ~ TAF &+ 11 1/1 N/AT i 1/1
(resigned on 20th July 2020) (RZZE_TF A= tHEMT)
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEFELE 5/5 2/2 1/1 2/2
Mr. Kee Wah Sze (appointed RELEE(NZZZZF/\A
on 10th August 2020) +BEEE) 2/2 11 11 N/AT i A

Mr. Eav Yin (deceased), the Chairman of the Company, is the father
of Ms. Eav Xin Qi Rosanna and Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan who are
both Executive Directors of the Company. Save as disclosed herein,
there is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among members of the Board or between the Chairman
and the chief executive officer.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Since the deceased of Mr. Eav Yin as the Chairman on 4th September
2020, the position of Chairman has been vacant while the function of
the chief executive officer is divided between the remaining Executive
Directors.

26| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

ARBEEBCEE(BR)RBHFRLLIRG BHE
E(REBRARAATES) 2 - GAX AR E
ES - BEEKE 2 M TR ETRAR 2RI &
% X% REXEMBERNLEMER -

FRRITRAH
HRERBCEER_Z_TFNLAMOBELY - £/F

B —EEZE MR ERSR T I RTES
P o

jit o P S SR B A R A )



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, except for the newly appointment of Mr. Kee Wah
Sze as independent executive director of the Company for a term of
3 years, the other non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election at annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are not less exacting than
those in the Code.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set up a nomination committee on 1st April 2012. The
principle duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Mr. Kee Wah Sze and Mr.
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee
is vacant at the moment upon the death of Mr. Eav Yin as the Chairman
on 4th September 2020.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors, appoint of new
executive director and make recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of directors.

NOMINATION POLICY

1. OBJECTIVE

This policy was approved and adopted by the board of directors
of the Company (“the Board”) by resolution passed on 23rd
November 2018. It sets out the criteria and procedures to be
adopted when considering candidates to be appointed or re-
elected as directors of the Company.
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2. NOMINATION CRITERIA

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorship:

. Character and integrity;

o Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company'’s business and corporate strategy;

o Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board;

. Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted for achieving diversity on the Board;

. Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the listing rules of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited applicable to the Company (the “Listing
Rules”) and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules;

o Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business or as suggested by the Board.

3. NOMINATION PROCESS
3.1. Nomination by the Nomination Committee

3.1.1 The Nomination Committee reviews the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board periodically and make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

3.1.2 When it is necessary to fill a causal vacancy or
appoint an additional director, the Nomination
Committee identifies or selects candidates as
recommended to the Committee, with or without
assistance from external agencies or the Company,
pursuant to the criteria set out in section 2;

3.1.3 If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable);
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3.1.4 The Nomination Committee makes recommendation
to the Board including the terms and conditions of the
appointment;

3.1.5 The Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

3.2. Re-election of Director at Annual General Meeting

3.2.1 In accordance with the Company’s New Bye-Laws,
every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and shall be
eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting;

3.2.2 The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring director. The Nomination Committee shall also
review the expertise and professional qualifications of
the retiring director, who offered himself/herself for re-
election at the annual general meeting, to determine
whether such director continues to meet the criteria as
set out in section 2;

3.2.3 Based on the review made by Nomination Committee,
the Board shall make recommendations to
shareholders on candidates standing for re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company, and
provide the available biographical information of the
retiring director in accordance with the Listing Rules
to enable shareholders to make the informed decision
on the re-election of such candidates at annual
general meeting of the Company.

3.3. Nomination by shareholders

The shareholders of the Company may propose a
person for election as a director in accordance with the
Memorandum of Association and New Bye-Laws of the
Company and applicable law, details of which are set out in
the “Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as director of the Company” of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant
to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, culture and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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The Board will review the Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness. At present, the Board has not set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee on 15th July 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The terms of reference have been updated during the
year in line with the revised Corporate Governance Code requirement
effective from 1st April 2012. The Remuneration Committee’s role is
to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure for Directors and senior management and to ensure that
they are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s
overall performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Mr. Kee Wah Sze and Mr.
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting to advise
the Board on the Group’s overall remuneration policy and structure of
the remuneration of the Directors and senior management and assess
the performance of the executive directors and senior management. No
Director or any of his/her associates may be involved in any decisions
as to his/her own remuneration. Based on the review and discussion at
the meeting, the Remuneration Committee recommended to the Board
to approve the Group’s overall policy and structure of the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31st March 2021 is set out below:

Remuneration bands Number of individuals

B0 IR R B - UERBE - ARRZBE
T2BEM- B BEEGUENEEMAFEER -

GMESS

E=ZgR_ZTENFLtA+HRAKYFHZES &
EEESECHBERERERR - AEAE T —=
FOA - BREEMNGETERERTRIENR - B
HECRFRAEH -FHEZES2ACARESZES
BERABZHERELRABRESTSREES N
LREZERIBRRMNAZBELT  BRESERSEY
AEEZEBERBHATER -FHEZEG 2T E
BEEARET2RITEZRSEERABRZHER
BOARSDEEEEIRARZEEBERERTE &
BN IR RG] E 2 Bl £ -

FMEE S U BIIFNTEETHRERLELE £F
TRERFECLELMEK - FTEFEERFMEES
ZERF e

FA FMNEESAFEB - REE HNEENERY
MR REERREEEASHFHEREHRZE
VA EATEERSRERBZRE - UBEERH
EABMEALSRABEATHZERRE - FTHES
EREEZMRTLES AESFROIZABEAL
SEHEFELREERASZBRHMBR AR -

HE-_Z-_—F=-A=1+—BLFE SREEER
BrHMEEFHNWT ¢

FMEE AE

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding the Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Note 10 to the financial
statements.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2021, the total remuneration of the
auditors of the Group for statutory audit services and other services
is HK$1,200,000 (2020: HK$1,270,000) and HK$380,000 (2020:
HK$380,000) respectively.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Audit Committee on 1st January 1999 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The Audit Committee’s role is to review the Group’s
financial reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues
and to make relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Mr. Kee Wah Sze and
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Lai
Si Ming.

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and adopted with
reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Audit Committee is required, among other things,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of internal control of the Group, to review accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisors as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year to review,
among other things, the interim and annual financial statements. Based
on the review and discussion at the meetings, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board, among other things, to approve the interim
and annual financial statements of the Group and to review the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below which had been attended during the year:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company secretary is Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, a full time employee
of the Company, is responsible for advising the Board on governance
matters. During the year, the Company Secretary has complied with the
professional training requirements under the Listing Rules.
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TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the Company has arranged training for all the Directors
with a view to refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company Secretary of the Company has complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Company continuously provides updates to the Directors with
the latest developments and changes to the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to improve the
Directors’ knowledge and skills.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has prepared a training record in order to assist the Directors
to record the training that have undertaken.

Below is a summary of the training the Directors had received during
the year under review:

Name of Director

EEnA

ESRACIHEII

FACARBERHEZBESIRI - ABMEHRLMR
TEeEE - £ KRR ZARMERE LR AIES3.29
G —EETHEBNEIFER-

EERNETEAR
AARFBEAEEREEH LTRINMEMERES

B BMBRENEE LRGN AEREFY
A B B

NBERIW EHE
SIEeek - AGENE

ARFEBEE2 NHETERER
SRABMAEEE - ARFEEAE
EREmMEZNE -

REEFERN  EEMEINBILET

Type of
Continuing
Professional
Development

Mr. Eav Yin (deceased on 4th September 2020)

Ms. Eav Xin Qi Rosanna

Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan

Mr. Lai Si Ming

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

Mr. Kee Wah Sze

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline (resigned on 20th July 2020)

Note :

1 Reading journals and updates relating to the economy, media business or
director’s duties and responsibilities, etc.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements where were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. A statement by
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages
37 to 43 of this annual report. As far as the Board is aware, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems to ensure that their
effectiveness.

The Company has established a risk management policy set out the
process of identification, evaluation and management of the principal
risks affecting the business. The Company has also established a
whistle-blowing policy and system for employees of the Group to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters.

As an ongoing process, the management has regular meetings with
the team to assess and handle the risk being identified in the daily
operation of the business. Significant risk will be reported to the
Board on a timely basis. The Board will review and assess the risk
management and internal control systems at least once a year.

During the year, the Board, with the establishment of internal audit
department to carry out the internal audit function of the Group, it
had reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group including material controls over financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. After the review,
the Board considered the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

In addition, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely, accurate
and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information about the
Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure of Inside
Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and procedures
for handling and dissemination of inside information. With those
guidelines and procedures, the Group has management controls in
place to ensure that potential inside information can be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the Board to
decide about the need for disclosure.
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been read out by the
chairman at the general meetings.

At the annual general meeting held on 17th September 2020
respectively, all directors (except Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan) were
present to answer questions raised by shareholders and a separate
resolution was proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate
issue, including re-election of Directors, and voted by way of poll. The
Company announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed
under the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called and propose any matter to be considered
at the general meeting of the Company. The Requisitionists may
deposit the written requisition for special general meeting (which shall
specify the full name of the Requisitionists, the business and proposal
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company, and shall be
signed by the Requisitionists) to the principal place of business of the
Company for the attention of the Board. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting in
specified days as provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules, the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director

Bye-law 103 of the Bye-laws of the Company provides that no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office at least seven days before the
date of the general meeting. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Bye-law will commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”)
wishes to propose a person other than a director of the Company
for election as a director of the Company at the general meeting (the
“Proposal”), he/she should lodge at the principal place of business in
Hong Kong of the Company at 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (i) a written notice setting
out the Proposal; and (ii) a written notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of the Proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director of the Company, include the person’s
biographical details as required under rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and such other information (e.g.
contact details, including residential address, telephone number, and
HKID card/passport number, etc.), and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned.

The period for lodgment of above written notices shall commence not
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of the general
meeting. The Company is required under rule 13.70 of the Listing Rules
to provide the information about the Proposal in a supplementary
circular or by way of an announcement not later than 10 business days
before the general meeting. If the above written notices are received
by the Company less than 21 days prior to the general meeting,
the Company may need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of
such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing to: (a)
give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to
them any statement of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists ‘may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
address and fax number etc.) by the following means:

Address: 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-28179043

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
information of the Director since the date of the Company’s 2020
interim report is as follows:

Mr. Kee Wah Sze, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, retired as an independent non-executive of Shougang
Fushan Resources Group Limited (Stock code: 639), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, with effect from 30th June 2021.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 44 to 151, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B 1% SEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, combined with the significant degree of judgement made by
the management associated with determining the net realisable value
(“NRV”).

As disclosed in Note 2(k) to the consolidated financial statements,
NRV represents the estimated selling prices for iinventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. The management’s estimation of the NRV is primarily based
on the condition of the inventories, market conditions and latest
available sales information and other factors as detailed in Note
4(b) to the consolidated financial statements. These estimations
are subject to uncertainty as a result of change of market trends,
customer preferences and competitor actions. As at 31st March
2021, the carrying amount of the inventories (net of write-down) was
HK$111,332,000.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation of the inventories included:

o Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s policy for making
allowance for watches and management’s process in identifying
slow-moving watches and determining the write-down for
watches;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the inventory aging
report;

. Assessing whether the provision for inventories at the end of
the reporting period was consistent with the Group’s inventory
provision policy by recalculating, on a sample basis, the provision
for inventories based on the Group’s inventory provision policy;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory items
by comparing the selling price subsequent to the year end against
their carrying values.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with significant degree of
judgment associated with determining the fair value. As at 31st March
2021, the fair value of the investment properties was HK$342,014,000.

As disclosed in Notes 2(f) and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, these investment properties are stated at fair value based
on valuation performed by the independent professional property
valuers. In determining the fair value of investment properties, the
independent professional property valuers adopted market comparison
approach and income capitalisation approach. The valuation is
dependent on certain key inputs that involve the management and
independent professional property valuers’ judgement. The key inputs
used in valuing the investment properties by the independent property
valuers include recent prices achieved by similar properties, current
market conditions, market rental and market yield as adopted in the
valuations.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation of investment properties included:

° Evaluating the competence, capability and objectivity of the
independent professional property valuers;

o Obtaining an understanding from the independent professional
property valuers about the valuation methodology, the
performance of the property markets, significant assumptions
adopted, critical judgement on key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

o Assessing whether the properties were valued on a consistent
basis using a consistent methodology by inquiring of management
and independent professional property valuers; and

o Assessing the reasonableness of source data used in the
valuations by benchmarking the assumptions to relevant market
information on sales prices and rentals achieved by the similar
properties in the neighbourhood.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

We identified impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter due to the significance of the carrying
amounts and significant judgements and estimates were involved by
management to identify whether any impairment indicators exist and
to determine the recoverable amounts of the cash generating units to
which the assets are allocated, including, amongst others, expected
future cash flows and sales growth rate.

As at 31st March 2021, the Group has property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$81,069,000.

Impairment assessment was performed by management annually or
when there are indicators of impairment by comparing the carrying
amount and the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating
unit to which the asset relates. During the year ended 31st March 2021,
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$2,922,000 was recognised.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures with respect to the management’s impairment
assessment included:

o Obtaining the cash flow forecasts prepared by management and
discussing with management on the major assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecasts for each cash-generating unit and
checking arithmetic accuracy of the forecast calculation;

. Evaluating and challenging the reasonableness of the
management cash flow forecasts by comparing the assumptions
made to internal and external data and testing these assumptions
with reference to third party documentation where available and
performing sensitivity analysis around key drivers, such as growth
rates, operating costs; and

o Obtaining evidence to assess adequate historical accuracy in
management’s forecasting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, action taken to eliminate threats or safeguard applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28th June 2021

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number P05049
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

nllT L) E‘ﬁﬁ%

For the year ended 31st March 2021

HE-Z-—HF=A=+—HILtFE

2021 2020
—E-— —E-TE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
M 5 FET FET
Revenue EE LN 5 1,164,981 800,051
Cost of sales $HE KA (932,809) (601,270)
Gross profit EF 232,172 198,781
Valuation gains/(loss) on investment BEWEZIHEWE, (F1E)
properties, net F R 3,130 (17,400)
Other revenue H b Yz 6 9,611 15,599
Other net gains ol F 5 7 15,431 6,234
Impairment loss on goodwill B 2R EEE = (19,895)
Impairment loss on right-of-use asset FREEEZREESSE (661) (96,894)
Impairment loss on property, W - HBERBHEZ
plant and equipment VERIEN: k- (2,261) (6,028)
Distribution costs 7 SHAK AN (118,652) (161,334)
Administrative expenses THE R (37,912) (47,093)
Finance costs B R 9(a) (9,389) (14,240)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB ARF, (BE) 9 91,469 (142,270)
Income tax FRig % 11 (35,710) (6,452)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable REERBBRAEAQARAFTEAZ
to the owners of the Company mAl (E1E) 55,759 (148,722)
Attributable to: BEN:
Owners of the Company FAN/NETES PN 58,542 (146,174)
Non-controlling interest I A HE 2 (2,783) (2,548)
55,759 (148,722)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREAN(FR) 13
Basic (HK cents) ERCEM) 7.84 (19.56)
Diluted (HK cents) g OB 1)) 7.84 (19.56)

The notes on pages 51 to 151 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

profit for the year are set out in Note 12.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

o O\
EE)

For the year ended 31st March 2021

SmMiHhFRREE

BHE—_Z-—F=-A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E=-—F —E_TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year REERRN (FA) 55,759 (148,722)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AEEHMEEmEKE S (FE)
for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently FE e ET D BEERZ
to profit or loss: HH :
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINEBEEZ
foreign operations (I 11,574 (6,200)
Release of fair value reserve on disposal of HEBEAABEFAEMEEmEZEZ
equity instrument at fair value through T A@ED AR ERKE
other comprehensive income - (8,113)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) AEFHEMERE NS (BE)
for the year, net of nil tax MR =18 11,574 (14,313)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) REEHEEE
for the year Wz (E8) 67,333 (163,035)
Attributable to: BER:
Owners of the Company RARIRAB A 70,116 (160,487)
Non-controlling interest P A% AE 2 (2,783) (2,548)
67,333 (163,035)

The notes on pages 51 to 151 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MIFIRIRR

As at 31st March 2021

KRB —F=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-— —E-F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt &E FET FAET
Non-current assets FRENEE
Property, plant and equipment LER: =) &L 14 81,069 106,319
Investment properties wEYE 15 342,014 343,772
Deposits and prepayments Ee KM HRE 21 9,306 18,410
Goodwill Gk 17 - -
Financial assets at fair value through BAREFAEBRZ
profit or loss TREE 19 7,773 14,133
Equity instrument at fair value through BRAREG AEMEEREZ
other comprehensive income fetET A 19 2,333 =
Deferred tax assets RIET A& FE 29(a) 2,418 2,418
Intangible assets B EE 16 - 276
444,913 485,328
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 20 111,332 195,992
Trade and other receivables = 5 & E A fE Y AR K 21 115,291 46,942
Trading securities BHER 22 510 382
Income tax recoverable ] Y& (8] B 15 B 12,021 9,016
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEED 23 130,663 69,121
369,817 321,453
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N A & 5 BR 3R 24 99,917 98,587
Contract liabilities SRAaE 25 2,441 1,224
Bank loans BITEE 27 164,090 161,403
Current income tax payable B[V HA & 28 BT 15 14,362 4,875
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 68,556 77,425
349,366 343,514
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (BE) FHE 20,451 (22,061)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABARE 465,364 463,267
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Rental deposits received and B RIEY  HERE
receipt in advance 2,546 2,355
Deferred tax liabilities ELERB AR 29(a) 26,387 23,657
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 27,689 95,846
56,622 121,858
Net assets EEFRE 408,742 341,409
Capital and reserves B AR fii
Share capital [N 30 149,424 149,424
Reserves 1.,%1% 264,176 194,060
Equity attributable to owners of the BERAQAFEAZER
Company 413,600 343,484
Non-controlling interests R (4,858) (2,075)
Total equity RSB 408,742 341,409
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th June 2021 and signed on its behalf by:
RZBEZ—FARAZTN\BEEEeRALEETE THTIINESRRE
Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan Eav Xin Qi Rosanna
o137 BHE
Director Director
E E
The notes on pages 51 to 151 form part of these financial statements. FS51EEF151H 2B L I ERER 2 R ID -
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For the year ended 31st March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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The notes on pages 51 to 151 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HREMERER

As at 31st March 2021

R-E-_—F=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5 FETT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEER
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREALEF (E18) 91,469 (142,270)
Adjustments for: FEES
Valuation (gains)/losses on investment WEYE 2 EE (W) EIE
properties, net R L5 (3,130) 17,400
Net realised and unrealised gain/(losses) BHEEERAABRY
on trading securities (Mz) /i8558 7 (128) 216
Loss on disposals of property, HEME  MERREZ
plant and equipment E18 7 562 8
Gain on disposal of equity investment HERERE Z Wi - (6,050)
Gain on lease modification HEER 2 W= (19,590) (1,256)
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down of FE 2 (B EMOR) W5
inventories, net 20 (4,694) 4,176
Impairment loss on goodwill BB ZREEE 17 - 19,895
Reversal of impairment loss on other H A UR FRIE 2 R (B S 18 B B
receivables - (154)
Impairment loss on trade receivables 5 IR FUREE B 7 1,503 -
Impairment loss on property, plant M - HEES K AR B 2 VB E1E
and equipment 14 2,261 6,028
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEE ZREESE 14 661 96,894
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EE 2 REEE 16 242 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BEETEE 16 34 -
Net gain on disposal of investment HEREDEZ F s
properties 7 (3,184) -
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair BRARBEFAEBRZ
value through profit or loss TREEZAREEIE 6,360 964
Bank interest income 8747 F 2 A 6 (564) (1,035)
Dividend income e S A 6 = (1)
Interest expenses FERX 9(a) 9,389 14,240
Depreciation e 14 37,403 79,302
COVID-19-related rent concession COVID-194H 87 & %k 4] (1,415) -
Write-off of other receivable Tl 55 L 1 e R TE 7 2,485 -
Written back of long outstanding payables B (8] = HA oK 5 h0B 7 (68) -
Exchange differences ERER 5,528 991
125,124 89,348
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEESET
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD, (M) 95,539 (4,622)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and Z o5 REMMBUIRR (M)
other receivables L (55,789) 11,019
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 K H At JE AR FUR > (1,744) (19,696)
Increase/(decrease) in rental deposits B RIER 2
received and receipt in advance MEZeE M Chd) 191 (756)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities aHaEEm Gad) 1,389 (87)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS EEXENEECZRS 164,710 75,206
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid BEHHPBRCEMBR (24,777) (3,749)
Hong Kong Income Tax paid B EBREH (3,005) (9,016)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM EERNKEEK2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BeEE 136,928 62,441
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

& O\ =Be
RBIRERER
As at 31st March 2021 RZ=ZZ=Z—F=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E=-—F —E_TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FETT FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER
Payment for purchase of property, TRARBEWE - IR REE
plant and equipment (3,295) (14,077)
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMEMSKIE
properties 11,903 -
Payment for purchase of intangible assets SNAREEREE - 9)
Proceeds from equity instruments at EBARBEFAREMEBKZEZ
fair value through other f&#E T H 2 Fris kI8
comprehensive income - 7,000
Payment for financial assets at fair value YRR AAREFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income WmzemEE (2,333) -
Deposit paid SRR (7,551) -
Decrease in structured deposit LM ROR D - 31,568
Dividend income iz S A - 1
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries FRUEERE A R = (12,685)
Bank interest income received 2 YERTT AL E YA 564 1,035
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (EFR) ELXRREXEK 2
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFE (712) 12,833
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ME XK
Proceeds from new bank loans RITHIEE TS HRIB 102,286 236,056
Repayment of bank loans EERITEE (99,603) (205,170)
Interest paid on bank loans BITEEZENFE (4,218) (4,604)
Interest paid on director loans BESERZEMAFE - (184)
Capital element of lease rentals paid EfffAERe 2 ARG (68,424) (70,645)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENAERS 2 F B35 (5,775) (9,334)
Proceeds from new director loans EEERZFEHRIE 28 - 5,000
Repayment of loans from a director BEEEZER 28 = (5,000)
Dividend paid B E 12(b) - (19,126)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ERARBMETEHZ
ACTIVITIES ReFHE (75,734) (73,007)
NET INCREASE IN CASH ReERBELEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #8105 5 60,482 2,267
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHNRERBREEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 69,121 69,990
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXBE2HE FHE
RATE CHANGES, NET 1,060 (3,136)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 130,663 69,121
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReRBESEENERD N
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand RITERRFERS 23 130,663 69,121
The notes on pages 51 to 151 form part of these financial statements. F51E 221518 2 W BRI B g R 2 R 5 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in sales of watches (retail and wholesale) and property
leasing.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda
and Room 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively. As at 31st March
2021, the directors of the Company consider that the immediate
and ultimate holding company is Century Hero International
Limited (“Century Hero”), a company which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. Century Hero does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

These financial statements are presented in thousand of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 28th June 2021.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

R §5 ER R B 5F

—iRSBA
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A EBROREEREARIAMBRAA ([BR
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2t 5> Bl AVictoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
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SR ARER183F A MAPLIMEZ01E - RZT
Z—F=ZRA=+—H ARARAEERREELE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property, including interests in leasehold
land ‘and buildings held as investment property where
the Group is the registered owner of the property
interest; and

- investments in equity securities

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying amount of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in Note 4.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

Going concern basis

The directors of the Company have given consideration to
the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. To sustain the Group as a going concern and to
monitor the Group’s liquidity and cash flows, the Group is
implementing the following measures:

- negotiating with banks for renewal and obtaining new
banking facilities;

- the directors of the Company have been taking
various cost control measures to tighten the costs of
operations; and

- the Group has been implementing various strategies to
enhance the Group’s turnover.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast
prepared by management which covers a period of twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. The directors
are of the opinion that the Group will be able to generate
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and meet
its financial obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of
the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The validity of the going concern assumption on which the
consolidated financial statements are prepared is dependent
on the successful and favourable outcomes of the steps
being taken by the directors as described above.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the values
of the assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise and to classify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entitles controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investment
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
Note 2(j)), unless the investments are classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposed group that is classified as
held for sale).

(d)(i) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination
under common control are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Incomes Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)(i) Business combinations (Continued)

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable
terms of the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)(i) Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

(d)(ii) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)(ii) Goodwill (Continued)

(e)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating
units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

Investments and other financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses), together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it
arises

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss
as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 2(i)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in Note 2(t).

The investment property is transferred to property, plant
and equipment at fair value when there is change in use
evidenced by commencement of own-occupation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

2())):

- interests in leasehold land and buildings where the
Group is the registered owner of the property interest
(see Note 2(i));

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner
of the property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use

assets arising from leases of underlying plant and

equipment (see Note 2(i)).

If a property becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that property (including the relevant leasehold land
classified as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer s
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve
to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over

their estimated useful lives.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

U]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— trademarks 10 years

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Leased assets (Continued)

(i

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis
over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Notes 2(g) and
2(j)), except for the following types of right-of-use asset:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. XESHBE(8)
() Leased assets (Continued) (i) HEE=E(E)
()  As a lessee (Continued) () EAFEMA(E

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with Note 2(f); and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is the registered owner
of the leasehold interest are carried at cost in
accordance with Note 2(g).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are any rent concessions
which arose as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were not
a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with Note

2(1)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Group applies the exemption
described in Note 2(i)(i), then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables)

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
equity securities measured at FVPL and equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling), are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

66| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

FESHIE (8)
(i) HEE=E (&)
(i)  ERHEA

HAEEERDEA - HREEMKBR
ErEHERREHEERKEMEE -
HWEEEBHEEEMERMT 28

Ao AR LEREABA - BEHE
DHR/BERE - B HESEAK
EHE .

fisd & EHENFEERSD AL
@&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁgﬁkéﬂﬁﬁﬁ

REZID KLEHEMBEHRS WA
TR A5 BT SE2(t) (i) FE 7R

HAEEATTHEA  DHEI2ZR
HOEENERBREE DBEABE
HEXK2HEE - WREHTIEHE
&M A S B RE A M 20 ()P #
AREEBDEBL D BLEEHE -

() EalEkREEHRE

(i

FEE@TAZIEERL

AEEER T BBEBRAEEEREZ
IR -

— REERAFEZEREAE (2%
RePReSENARES LA
1t JE U5 AR 0D

EeREERAAENE  BER
AREFABRFEBEZRAES RIE
ERBAREMGAREMR2ER T 2R

AEH (FAEE)  FTEXEREEES
BAR -
o o SR R B A TR A F]



2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(/) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(/) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(/) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 180 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed on
a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2(t)
(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.
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2.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is' made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the amount carried in “trade and other
payables” in respect of the guarantees (i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since
the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor will
default has increased significantly since the guarantee
is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The
same definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described in Note

2(j)(i) apply.
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2.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any
other party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

- intangible assets;

a goodwill;

- deposits and prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(/) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii)  Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
amount of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
Notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
(k) Inventories
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
conversing business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in
the production process or in the rendering of services.
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on a first-in, first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see Note 2(t)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see

Note 2(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see Note 2(t)(iv)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. It revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see Note

2()(@)-

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing cost (see Note 2(v)).
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2.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with Note 2(j)(ii), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECLs) in accordance with the policy set out in Note

2())(@)-

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material,
stated at their present values.

these amounts are

(i)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

(iii) ~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(f),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous contracts

(i

(i)

(ifi)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract exists when the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract. Provisions
for onerous contracts are measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the net cost of continuing with the
contract.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at the date
of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured. After
their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent
liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would be
determined in accordance with Note 2(s)(i). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that
cannot be reliably fair valued or were not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed in
accordance with Note 2(s)(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer
for more than 12 months,
present value of the amount receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income

revenue is measured at the

is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Sale of watches

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and/or services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated between
all the goods and services promised under the contract
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see Note 2(j)

D)

Gourmet income

Revenue from sale of food products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the goods has
been transferred when the products are accepted by
the customers. Revenue from restaurant operation is
recognised at the point in time when catering services
have been provided to customers.

Service income
Service income is recognised at the point in time

when the services are fully rendered and accepted by
customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

(u)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the

same periods in which the expenses are incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent;

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(v) Borrowing costs
(w) Related parties
(@)

(i)

(iii)

(0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
TR FER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(x)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the board of
directors of the Company, the Group’s most senior executive
management, for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

86| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

2. FESFECR ()

(w) BEEAL (&)

()

(b) MWFAE TIEMES  —EEREN
SEAR: (B)

(viiy —FEIER  AAEEEFAKER
AIEA—EELE RHETAEE
UAREBEZRBAREEEEAR
B 75

FALZERERMARSTUYERA+E
PSP RS Tl eI 2 PRl
REAE -

NEWRE

REDBEMBERRM2BZ BV AERE R
B DRERSREERTARESEERR
WwED SR HEERAEMERRETARA
BExg(ARERSEEEAR) ZHBER
i #E5E ©

SIS 2N F - BRIFD A A EBUNKLE
FRLEERMRBME £ETFME -
EPBAREN - AEDEERSIRHERE
MEREERFWEE T EMAL - BRIE
BEERLLEDMIGETEE (EHRIFEKR
MEE DA - MR G LA DIRE - B
FETARE -

0

SHe

FE

i

EEEHARAE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has applied the following amendments issued by the
HKICPA to these financial statements for the current accounting
period of the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Definition of Material
Definition of a Business
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent

Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Other than the Amendment to HKFRS 16, none of these
developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s
results and financial position for the current and prior years have
been prepared on presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that allows a
lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate whether certain qualifying
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19-related rent concessions”)
are lease modifications and, instead, account for those rent
concessions as if they were not lease modifications.

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendments and
applies the practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19-
related rent concessions granted to the Group during the year.
Consequently, rent concessions received have been accounted for
as negative variable lease payments recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurred. There is no impact on the opening balance of
equity at 1st April 2020.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

(@) Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuations performed by independent qualified professional
valuers. In determining the fair values, the valuers have
based on a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates of market condition. In relying on the valuation
report, the directors of the Company have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used in
the valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in
the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at
31st March 2021, the fair value of the investment properties
was HK$342,014,000 (2020: HK$343,772,000).
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The management of the Group carries out regular
review on the inventory write-down policy and estimates
the net realisable value of the watches based primarily on
condition of the inventories, current market conditions,
historical and latest sales information and sales plan as well
as the aging of inventories to identify slow-moving items.
The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of
the reporting period and inventories are written down to
estimated net realisable value. The identification of write-
down requires the use of estimates. When the expectation
of the net realisable value is less than the original estimate,
further write-down may arise. As at 31st March 2021, the
carrying amount of the inventories (net of write-down) was
HK$111,332,000 (2020: HK$195,992,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and
credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually. In
addition, the Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for the trade receivables which are individually insignificant.
The provision rates are based on groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables
with significant balances and credit impaired are assessed
for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in Notes 33 and 21 respectively.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(d)

Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group estimates its income tax provision in accordance
with the prevailing tax rules and regulations, taking into
account any special approvals obtained from relevant tax
authorities and any preferential tax treatment to which it is
entitled in each location or jurisdiction in which the Group
operates. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

The Group believes it has recorded adequate current tax
provision based on the prevailing tax rules and regulations
and its current best estimates and assumptions. In the event
that future tax rules and regulations or related circumstances
change, adjustments to current taxation may be necessary
which would impact the Group’s results or financial position.
As at 31st March 2021, the carrying amount of current
income tax payable is HK$14,362,000 (2020: HK$4,875,000).

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the directors
consider it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and tax expenses or other
comprehensive income in the periods in which such estimate
is changed. As at 31st March 2021, the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities amounted
to HK$2,418,000 and HK$26,387,000 respectively (2020:
HK$2,418,000 and HK$23,657,000).

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in determining the deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. The Group has not recognised any deferred tax on
changes in fair value of investment properties as the Group is
not subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes of
the investment properties on disposal.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(e)

®

Determining the lease term

As explained in the above accounting policies, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term. In determining
the lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group
evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal options
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the
option, including favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset
to the Group’s operation. The lease term is reassessed
when there is a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any increase
or decrease in the lease term would affect the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in future
years.

Principal vs agent consideration

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group
is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services
to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an
agent). The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is transferred
to a customer. The Group is an agent if its performance
obligation is to arrange for the provision of the specified
good or service by another party. In this case, the Group
does not control the specified good or service provided by
another party before that good or service is transferred to the
customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which
it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by the other
party.

The Group follows the accounting guidance for principal-
agent considerations to assess whether the Group controls
the specified service before it is transferred to the customer,
the indicators of which including but not limited to (a)
whether the entity is primarily responsible for fulfilling the
promise to provide the specified service; (b) whether the
entity has inventory risk before the specified service has
been transferred to a customer; and (c) whether the entity
has discretion in establishing the prices for the specified
goods or service. The management considers the above
factors in totality, as none of the factors individually are
considered presumptive or determinative, and applies
judgment when assessing the indicators depending on each
different circumstances.
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5. REVENUE 5. EEWA
The principal activities of the Group are sales of watches (retail AREBZFEEBLAERES (TERLE)UR
and wholesale) property leasing and gourmet business. MEREREREK -
Revenue represents (i) the gross proceeds received and receivable LU ABN()R B E E A R IR - 1
derived from the sale of watches, less the value added tax, other TRIEET C EMEERNE SIIETSHE
sales taxes and trade discounts, (ii) rental income from property K (i) B M EMRE NS WA K(i)ER WA -

leasing and (iii) gourmet income.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue iy =wEBAZD
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by BRIrEZERSIRBREA S 2 RETPEHZ
major products or service lines is as follows: EEWAWNT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers BB REERE155REE A
within the scope of HKFRS 15 KEEPARHZ KA
- Sales of watches — EBRIHE 1,143,034 784,897
— Service income — R U A 946 -
— Gourmet income — ERIA 7,912 5,048
Revenue from other sources R B EH A ROR 2 W e
- Rental income from investment properties — REKREYMEZHET WA 13,089 10,106
1,164,981 800,051
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by HERRARERZETISE S RERF
the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets & B W a5 TR FE8 YR B o
is disclosed in Note 8.
6. OTHER REVENUE 6. Hfthlyzs
2021 2020
== —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest income on financial assets measured NEERATEcemEE
at amortised cost B YA 564 1,035
Dividend income AL ON - 1
Advertising income BEERA 4,098 3,143
Customer services income and others FARRIS WA K E A 4,949 11,420
9,611 15,599
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R §5 ER R B 5F

OTHER NET GAINS 7. Hithlxz=i$8
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Net realised and unrealised gain/(loss) on BHLEEEENRABHRZ
trading securities Wi /(5B 558 128 (216)
Net gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 2 W FHE 3,184 -
Profit on disposal of equity investment HERERE 2% A - 6,050
Impairment loss on trademark 1R 2 M E S (242) -
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 RV 2 REEE (1,503) -
Write off of other receivable Jif 8 L 8 LK AR 3R (2,485) -
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value EARER ABE ([EARE
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) FTAEZ ) EmEEL
AREEE (6,360) (964)
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE HMEREREZ
plant and equipment &g (562) (8)
Written back of long outstanding payables # [0 & HA R 508 68 -
Gain on lease modification HEBR 2 W 19,590 1,256
Government subsidy BT 48 B) 3,742 -
Others Hth (129) 116
15,431 6,234

() In 2020, the Group successfully applied for funding support
from the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-
epidemic Fund, set up by the Hong Kong SAR Government.
The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to
enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise
be made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group
is required not to make redundancies during the subsidy
period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to the
employees.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision makers (“CODM?”) for the purposes of resource
allocations and performance assessments. The Group has
presented two reportable segments: (i) sales of watches (retail and
wholesale) and (ii) properties leasing. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form these two reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the CODM monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in notes to
the financial statements. Segment profit/(loss) represents the
profit earned by/(loss) from each segment without allocation of
central administration costs and corporate costs which cannot be
meaningfully allocated to individual segment. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
current income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and borrowings
not attributable to individual segments and other corporate
liabilities.
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8.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) DEIRE (£8)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets LWTEREELE 2 EE WA - ¥XE - BE
and liabilities by operating segment: kaEzn
2021
—E--F
Sales of Property Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
HEHE HENE ABET L) @it
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET 223 FET FET
Disaggregated by the time of revenue recognition RN 2 BE AT
Point in time IREFEE 1,143,034 - 1,143,034 7,912 1,150,946
Over tine R—BEEA - 13,089 13,089 946 14,035
External revenue (Note) oM (W) 1,143,034 13,089 1,156,123 8,858 1,164,981
Operating profit/(l0ss) mesEr/ (58) 102,898 (1,584) 101,314 (16,659) 84,655
Valuation gain on investments properties, net RENE HEkE 38 - 3,130 3,130 = 3,130
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 0% - KEREEZAERE - (717) (717) (2,205) (2,922)
Interest income HERA 564 - 564 - 564
Other net gains/(losses) Evlhs/ (Bi8) 58 15,733 3,284 19,017 (3,586) 15,431
Finance costs BITEAA (9,185) - (9,185) (204) (9,389)
Segmental results PEEE 110,010 4,113 114,123 (22,654) 91,469
Income tax FiEHt (35,710)
Profit for the year FERET 55,759
Reversal of write-down of inventories, net BENAES T8 4,694 - 4,694 - 4,694
Net realised and unrealised loss on trading securities BHEBERNAER L
BEFE - - - 128 128
Impairment loss on trade receivables BRI 2 FEEE (1,503) - (1,503) = (1,503)
Gain on disposal of investment properties LERENE 2 - 3,184 3,184 = 3,184
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  UEREE EE - - = (562) (562)
Write off of other receivables HEHE o R 3 (2,485) - (2,485) - (2,485)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (34,571) (791) (35,362) (2,075) (37,437)
Income tax expenses FiEhi R (32,980) - (32,980) - (32,980)
Deferred tax ETHE (2,730) 5 (2,730) = (2,730)
Segment assets PEHEE 430,124 354,066 784,190 20,349 804,539
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BARBHABRZEREAE 7,773
Deferred tax assets ERTEEE 2,418
Total assets BEE 814,730
Additions to non-current segment assets BEBNERBAHEELEM
during the reporting period 11,500 8,696 20,196 2,638 22,834
Segment liabilities SHERE 326,576 22,337 348,913 16,326 365,239
Current income tax payable EVERRE pria i 14,362
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE 26,387
Total liabilities BafE 405,988

Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March

2021.

i RBE-Z=
DEREHE -

—FZA=tT-HLFEHRYE
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8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. PNIPIRE (8)
2020
k- %2
Sales of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
EREE HEME pEEHS FAR @it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAET FET FET Fér FET
Disaggregated by timing of revenue recognition RERS BRI
Point in time RERREE 786,516 - 786,516 5,048 791,564
Over time R—BERERA - 8,487 8,487 - 8,487
External revenue (Note) MRS (i) 786,516 8,487 795,008 5,048 800,051
Operating profit/(loss) BLRF|/ (F8) 27,129 (1,225) 25,904 (20,986) 4918
Valuation loss on investment properties RENE 2 (hEfE - (17,400) (17,400) - (17,400)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZRERE - - - (19,895) (19,895)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets ERREEHERE (96,894) - (96,894) - (96,894)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment nE - HEREEZRESE (6,028) - (6,028) - (6,028)
Interest income FIEMA 1,035 - 1,035 - 1,035
Other net gains/(losses) s/ (BR) 38 1,227 @ 1,225 5,009 6,234
Finance costs SRR (14,162) - (14,162) (78) (14,240)
Segment results S (87,693) (18,627) (106,320) (35,950) (142,270)
Income tax expense MEHER (6,452)
Loss for the year rEEBA (148,722)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENX  BEREBELER @) = @ - (Gl
Write-down of inventories HEFE (4,176) - (4,176) - (4,176)
Reversal of impairment loss of other receivable REAMENE RESE 154 - 154 - 154
Net realised and unrealised loss on trading securities
- - - (215) (215)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREE (76,659) (762) (77,421) (1,881) (79,302)
Income tax expense FiSHiER (4,004) - (4,004) L (4,004)
Deferred tax BT (2,448) - (2,448) - (2,448)
Segment assets PHEE 428,738 327,136 755,874 34,356 790,230
Financial assets at fair value through RARBEFABR EREE
profit or loss 14,133
Deferred tax assets EEHRRE 2,418
Total assets BEE 806,781
Additions to non-current segment assets AREHHERY
during the reporting period AREEZEM 247,631 209 247,840 26,489 274,329
Segment liabilities AHaRE 415,111 8,822 423,933 12,907 436,840
Current income tax payable 4,875
Deferred tax liabilities 23,657
Total liabilities ek 465,372
Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March Bt REE - -_TFE=-A =+ —HILFEHMTE
2020. DEBMEHEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) NERIRE (48)
Geographic information e ES R
The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the LTAONNEERABIINGER 2 W R(i)yAE B
Group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group’s T MENEE KREME EBREEENUL
property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible BeRENFEZEEMEIIT - ELEEMR
assets and deposits and prepayments. The geographical location 2ZAREREXEMEXRZHE - BEIERE
of customers is referred to the location at which the services were BEZREMEREENEEZERMEEERE -
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical locations of
specific non-current assets are based on the physical location of
the assets.
Revenues from
external customers Non-current assets
RENBEF 2 Wz FRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E=-—-F —ZTE —E=-—-F ETE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
The People’s Republic hEANRAEME
of China, excluding Hong Kong B BRI 1,034,134 340,541 85,755 107,864
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &5 (REM) 129,317 458,560 249,985 278,516
Switzerland Wt 1,530 950 17,550 16,409
United Kingdom HE - - 79,099 65,988
1,164,981 800,051 423,389 468,777
Information about major customers FAREFEZEFEHR
For the year ended 31st March 2021, revenue of approximately REBEE_ZT-—F=ZA=+-—BLFE
HK$333,075,000 (2020: HK$109,818,000) was derived from a 888,075,000/% 7t (=T = Z 4 : 109,818,000/
single external customer who contributed more than 10% of total ) MEERAREE IR, HEMMGEER
revenue of the Group. This revenue was attributable to the sales of BUYERI0%IA - - ZHFELERAKRBEBRIEED
watches segment. BB R ©
TR A A IR
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B RS R R BfI 5T
9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 9. [\l ﬂ:l“/ (F518)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BEEER (BE)EN%R, (BFA) U T&IHE
(a) Finance costs (a) B FEREAKR
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIEEF S 3,614 4,882
Interest on lease liabilities HE&EFE 5,775 9,334
Interest on loans from a director EIEFAE - 24
Total interest expenses on financial WIER A R B ABEN SR
liabilities not at fair value through BEMELENHE L HAE
profit or loss 9,389 14,240
(b) Staff costs (b) BIpK
2021 2020
—E=-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits (including He LERHMER
directors’ fee and emoluments) (BREE=wReEME) 59,921 57,184
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RINGE AT EI K 1,968 2,939
61,889 60,123
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F5 R R BT 5
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 9. MRBi#aiis ﬁi']/ (Ks18) (8
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BEEER S (BE)EMNGR, (GTA) L T&IE
(Continued) €-))
(c) Other items (c) HfthaB
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Rental receivable from investment "E Y E R B
properties less direct outgoings of HE % H212,000% T
HK$212,000 (2020: HK$566,000) — T T F : 566,000 1) (12,877) (9,540)
Net exchange gain P& 5 Wz R 58 (184) (452)
Auditors’ remuneration 1Z B0 AT B &
- Audit services —ZE R 1,200 1,270
— Other services — H b iR %5 380 380
Amortisation of intangible assets EEE 2 34 -
Depreciation change mERBR
- Owned property, plant and equipment —BEE Y% - #E L L E 7,450 7,684
- right-of-use assets —FREEE 29,953 71,618
37,403 79,302
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down of (BEDMOR) WMo F &8
inventories, net (4,694) 4,176
Impairment loss on goodwill BB ZRERE - 19,895
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets & F & & 2 & & 18 661 96,894
Impairment loss on property, plant W R N REZBIEEIE
and equipment 2,261 6,028
Impairment loss on trade receivable Z 5 RRERZBIEEE 1,503 -
Write off of other receivables i 8 £ b 8 U AR 3K 2,485 -
Written back of long outstanding payables 1 [8] & Hi & < 218 (68) -
Variable lease payments not included R 2HEABR R R
in the measurement of lease liabilities AIEAEN R 9,502 1,222
Cost of inventories recognised BRAERAZ 2 TFERAK
as expenses 932,809 601,270
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EEMERESHEAL
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM2
The emoluments of each director for the years ended 31st REE B FR_TE_TF=Z[=+—
March 2021 and 2020 are set out below: AEFEBNESZHESEIOT :
2021
—E--&
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances  to retirement
Directors’ Basic Discretionary and other benefit
fees salaries bonus benefits scheme Total
EER BIRER
20k Exge  FRERA HitER  SEEEHER @it

HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FAET FAT

Executive Directors BTES

Eav Yin (Note () B (W) 102 2,13 252 616 - 3,106
Eav Xin Qi Rosanna Eid - 798 3 - - 801
Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan 13 238 3,606 254 - 18 4,116
340 6,540 509 616 18 8,023

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEES
Lai Si Ming B2 238 - - - - 238
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline (Note (i) - ##F (%iz(ii)) 72 - - - - 72
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TER 238 - - - - 238
Kee Wah Sze (Note (i) R (s (i) 153 - - - - 153
701 - - - - 701
1,041 6,540 509 616 18 8,724
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

10. ESHERRSHEAL ()

(iv) There was no arrangement under which a director waived or (ivy BHE-_Z-_-—FEK-_ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—H
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31st It FEHME  TEEEHEXRERELM
March 2021 and 2020. ez k-

(v)  No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as V) MREBE-Z-_—FK— TFE=ZA=+—
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as AIEZFE  AEETEINTESESEAR
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31st March SIEMASKRIMARE B % - SKEABERME
2021 and 2020. B2 -

(v As at 31st March 2021 and 2020, the directors held share (viy RZZEZ—Fk-ZT-TF=-A=+—H"
options under the Company’s share option scheme. The details EERBAQRERESEFEERE - B
of the share options are disclosed under the paragraph “share BN EETSREZ [EARETE I — R
option scheme” in the report of the directors and Note 31(a). KB 5E31(a)h 5B o

(viij The Company has not appointed Chief Executive, and the role (vii) ARAFWEZBITHEHE LITHEZRNAR
and function of the Chief Executive has been performed by the LB D HMITESEETT ©
executive directors.
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(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) =B (8)
2020
ke S 33
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances  to retirement
Directors’ Basic  Discretionary and other benefit
fees salaries bonus benefits scheme Total
ZER BRER
TR Y TERBEA EER FHEEFHR @it
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HTEE
Eav Yin B 238 4,822 894 1,440 - 7,394
Eav Xin Qi Rosanna 55 - 840 201 - - 1,041
Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan o137 238 3,502 839 - 16 4,595
476 9,164 1,934 1,440 16 13,030
Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHTES
Lai Si Ming L 238 - - - - 238
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline TEF 238 - - - - 238
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TiEH 238 - - - - 238
714 - - - - 714
1,190 9,164 1,934 1,440 16 13,744
Notes: Hist -

(U]

(i)

(iii)

Mr. Eav Yin, former Chairman, passed away on 4th September
2020. Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, is the administrator/executor of
the estate of Mr. Eav Yin.

Mr. Kee Wah Sze is appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 10th August 2020.

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline, resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 20th July 2020.

(i)

(iif)

RMERBCAERZT_TFNANBE
o MEBLLTRABCEEEECEEER
ANEBRITA e

HELTREN T _ZFN\ATBEEZER
BAUERTES -

TESF TR T _TFLA -+ HEHIE
SIFHATES -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. SEHERESHMEA T (E)
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments b) EeMEAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two AfuGEsHALTH ML (ZZE_ZF: M
(2020: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed i) BE 2B &AM FE106) 5 5 o« H =1
in Note 10(j). The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of (ZZZZFF =) At zMe@zmEeT :

the other three (2020: three) individuals is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-— —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Basic salaries, allowances and other BEXRF &  EZUREMER
emoluments 4,887 3,850
Performance related incentive payments RIFEB A 831 739
Employer’s contribution to retirement RIRAET 5 EME E AR
benefit scheme 36 135
5,754 4,724
The emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three) BI=U(ZEZEF: =) Zale At
individuals with the highest emoluments are within the NETHEE :

following bands:

Number of individuals

AR
2021 2020
—g=-% ZE-TH
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001)& 7T - 1,500,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T - 2,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T - 2,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,000,000 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,000% 7T - 3,500,000/ 7T 1 -
3 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT LB EERNZRESTH
OR LOSS
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FrET
Current tax BNERRE 1R
PRC Corporate Income Tax hEI TSR
- Charge for the year — REEMER 32,980 4,004
Deferred tax IRAER I
Origination and reversal of temporary BRMEECEARED
differences 2,730 2,448
Income tax expense FreRim 35,710 6,452
The subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits BB ARNBEEFNEMEAR165%(ZF=F
Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%). No Hong Kong Profits F:165%) HE_T-_—FR-ZT-TF=A
Tax has been provided for in the financial statements for the years =+ BUEFENMBERET  TERFENG
ended 31st March 2021 and 2020 either because the Hong Kong MIEL B E  MABEWNB AT AN ZHIEE
subsidiaries have accumulated tax losses brought forward which BB A FEE G ERET R RSB BB D B8k
exceeded the estimated assessable profits or the Hong Kong BHTE A ERE -
subsidiaries sustained losses for taxation purpose.
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT BIETFRPEMRESRA((REMSHE]) RO
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate FTSFAB G - REME R RWEFED
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. T E 1 5H25% o
The subsidiary in Switzerland is subject to Switzerland Profits Tax R+t 2B RARNETFERH R E16% (ZF
at the rate of 16% (2020: 16%). No Switzerland Profits Tax has “EF16%) REE_ZTEZ-—FR_ZT_F
been provided for the years ended 31st March 2021 and 2020 as F=ZRA=T—BLFE BRAEEN &KL
the Group has no estimated assessable profits in Switzerland. TGS EEFEF - B8 AR T RS R B o
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British RBIEARENEBEREZBEERBILIEHNETE » &
Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in these EREELEETERATINTMPAEHREE -
jurisdictions.
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 1. ES8BEEAZEREH (8)

OR LOSS (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting profit/(loss)

BEMS RN, (BR) REA B RFE

at applicable tax rates: AR -
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FrET
Profit/(loss) before taxation B AR T (BE) 91,468 (142,270)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation, RAEBRRNERER, (BB)
calculated at the tax rates applicable to REAR R ENGRBR AN Z
profit/(losses) in the countries concerned HEBIA 26,264 (22,130)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TERIS T aE 4R 2 X 2 Bl s & 13,830 26,613
Tax effect of non-taxable items EMRFEETERGCIEE ZRBEE (18,454) (1,458)
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses ' FRAAEFRA ZHIEEBZHETE (3,271) (3,178)
Tax effect of previously unrecognised and BEREERARRNEGFRAZTIEEE
unused tax losses and deductible temporary A &fﬁﬁﬁémﬁipkﬁlﬁ;ﬁézﬁﬁﬂ
differences now recognised as deferred tax BMERZER MG E
assets - (252)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RWHERZREBEBZRETE 12,556 4,647
Tax effect of temporary AR ERER
difference not recognised 2 IS8 (358) (490)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of R B A Rl Z R 9 ik Al 2 TR
PRC subsidiaries 3,100 2,700
Withholding tax on dividend income from PRC & & 0 i J& 2 &) B B I A 2 38 40 7
subsidiaries 2,413 -
Deferred tax on disposal of investment HEREYEZBRLERE
properties (370) -
Actual tax expense ERRIESZ S 35,710 6,452
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIVIDENDS

(a)

(b)

The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment or declaration of any dividends in respect of the
years ended 31st March 2021 and 2020.

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during
the year

12. ﬂi &
(a)

(b)

R §5 ER R B 5F

ARREEIEZRRNXERBE T - —
FRZBZBF=ZA=+—RHIFEZEMN

%8 o

B O B FE FE S (i 2 AR EF Aot e B2 2 1)
ZEMKATFEARSR

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Final dividend in respect of the previous FABATHREETERFA
financial year, approved and paid during the Bt/ & 5 1+ 7 5 Hi % 8 G %
year of HK$Nil (2020: HK$0.0256) per share THEL(ZE=F
0.02567% 7T) = 19,126
13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. BIRET  (&i8)
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (a) ERBEARERMN(EI8)
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year REE-_ S —&F#=-A=+—HIEEEK’

(b)

ended 31st March 2021 has been based on earnings
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$58,542,000
and the weighted average number of 747,123,000 ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended
31st March 2020 is based on loss attributable to the owners
of the Company of HK$146,174,000 and the weighted
average number of 747,123,000 ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is equal to the basic
earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31st March
2021 and 2020.

The Company’s share options have no dilutive effect for
the years ended 31st March 2021 and 2020 because the
exercise price of the Company’s share options was higher
than the average market price of the Company’s shares for
both years.

(b)

EXRBFNERBEEBRARRFTEARBGER
F158,542,00058 7T © LA K A 4R (R 2517 89 hAE
5 @R 747,123,00008 51 & -

REBEE-Z-TF=A=1+—RALLFEESR
ERBRIDBERBNAARFE ARGE
18146,174,000/8 7T » DA R & A 2% 77 1 DN 48
1 A% 747,123,0000% 5 & -

SRBRN (58)

RBE-B- FR-F-FE=A=1-
AL EFREEAT (FR) BSRER
AER,/ () -

REBE-E - —FR-Z-_TF=A=+—
BHIEFE - AN B 0 AR R 0 A 8 8 e - i
FBEMER  NARBRETEEISN
RABRG FHTE -
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 0% - I§#S K28
Ownership
interests in Other
leasehold land properties
and buildings leased for Furniture, Machinery
held for own use own use Landand fixtures and Leasehold and Motor  Construction
carriﬁ% aﬁtJ%)% carried at cost buildings fittings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
1 B35
HRAZEE RAAIRS .
1HRETZ fFERAZ EERE i BER .
EREEE HMARNE  rHRET R%E 2§ 2% AE HEIR 2%
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
AT THT AT AT AT FHT FAT AT AT
31st March 2020 2F5=A=t-H
At 31st March 2019, net of RZE-NE=A=+-A"
accumulated depreciation and i 2 E REE
impairment - - 16,353 kil 3,570 632 2,905 2,048 25,539
Impact on initial application of  ¥]%/E F & 7581 #5 %8
S 16 165798
- right-of-use assets - FHELE - 219,784 - - - - - - 219,784
Restated opening net book EJI-E-NEME-H2
amount at 1st April 2019 HNEESE - 219,784 16,353 3 3,570 632 2,905 2,048 245,323
Translation differences BEZE (1,118 (4,187) - - (91) @] - (135) (5,535)
Additions RE - 13,389 - 918 9,660 2,018 - 4,135 30,120
Acquisition through business ~ EBEHA ke (fi534)
combination (Note 34) - 3,032 - 35 467 2 - - 3,657
Transfer from prepaid lease SRERERAZE
payment 16,203 - - - - - - - 16,208
Reassessment Bf - (1,117) - - - - - - (1,17
Transfer gz 16,363 - (16,353) - 5,994 54 - (6,048) -
Disposal e - - - - 8) - - - 8
Impairment A - (96,894) - (@11) (4,530) (115) (972) - (102,922)
Depreciation charges nER (809) (70,809) - (177) (6,065) (665) () - (79,302)
At 31st March 2020, net of TE-R=+-H"
accumulated depreciation and TERAE
impairment 30,629 63,198 - 396 8,997 1,943 1,156 - 106,319
At 31st March 2020 R-E-RE=A=t-H
Cost i 38,024 230,446 - 1,453 32,969 20,907 4,724 - 328,723
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZHHERFE
impairment (7,59%) (167,248) - (1,057) (23,972) (18,964) (3,568) - (222,404)
Net carrying amount KAYE 30,629 63,198 - 396 8,997 1,943 1,156 - 106,319
31st March 2021
At 31st March 2020, net of
accumulated depreciation and
impairment 30,629 63,198 - 396 8,997 1,943 1,156 - 106,319
Translation differences 1,410 3,314 - - 376 59 - - 5,159
Additions - 8,799 - 895 618 1,644 - - 11,956
Transfer to investment property (1,478) - - - - N - - (1.478)
Transfer - - - (31) - 31 - - -
Disposal - - - - (562) - - - (562)
Impairment - (661) - (1,132 (1,061) (68) - - (2,922)
Depreciation charges (817) (29,136) - (110) 6,171) (670) (499) - (37,403)
At 31st March 2021, net of
accumulated depreciation and
impairment 20,744 45514 - 18 2,197 2,939 657 - 81,069
At 31t March 2021 KZBZ-2Zf=+-H
Cost i 38,287 204,717 - 2,309 34,309 21,683 4,724 - 346,029
Accumulated depreciationand  ZiHTE R E
impairment (8543) 199,203) - 2.201) (32,112) (18,744) (4,067) - (264,960)
Net carrying amount REFE 29,744 45,514 - 18 2,197 2,039 657 - 81,069
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-

line basis at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land is not depreciated

Leasehold land 2% or over the remaining terms
of the leases, if shorter

2 - 4% or over the remaining
lease period, if shorter

15-20%

5 -50% or over the remaining
lease period, if shorter

20 - 50%

20%

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

14. W% - BBRR

R §5 ER R B 5F

(48)

Wit -

(@)

ME - BERZBAEREZ N INFRFAE
IE:

KAERE TG RITE

FAEL 2%k R T4 B T F HA
(AR EH B%E)

BgF 2 - 4%HIEFLAHBT
FHI(ARIE & BE)

RE  RBEREE 15-20%

HEWERE 5-50%s LA ABT
FH (ARG E BE)

i TN 20 - 50%

YRE 20%

(b) At 31st March 2021, land and buildings of HK$11,266,000 by R-ZTZ—F=A=+—H" 11,266,000
(2020: HK$11,478,000) were pledged as securities for bank T2t REF(ZF ZFF : 11,478,000
loans as detailed in Note 27. L) BEERIRITER ZER - FHEHRK

27 -

(c) Right-of-use assets (c) FREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by FREEERBBEERNS D CREFE
class of underlying asset is as follows: DI -

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
—B-—F —ETF
=A=+-8 =ZA=+-8
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
(i FET FET
Ownership interests in leasehold land and REBRANEYRFIEFERANEE
buildings held for own use, carried at fair T RIEF AR - TR
value in Hong Kong, with remaining lease EENT
term of: (i)
- 50 years or more - 50F A I 18,478 11,478
- between 10 and 50 years - 102504 11,266 19,151
Other properties leased for own use, BIERAVERIFIEERZ
carried at depreciated cost HiAEME (i) 45,514 63,198
75,258 93,827
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

14. % - BBRRE (1)

Hfet - (&)

(©)

EREEE (&)

REZERZEERZER 25 MHEII W
T~

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK’000 HK’000
FET FET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ~ IZIEHEEEHFIE H 2 EREEENERR
by class of underlying asset:
Ownership interests in leasehold land HE T RIEF 2 A S
and buildings 817 809
Other properties leased for own use FHIEBAZEMBEE NS 29,136 70,809
29,953 71,618
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBBE RS (M) 5,775 9,334
Expense relating to short-term leases and EEAE LFSBEEN S =2F=A=1+—H
other leases with remaining lease term sk A4 R 2 HAb T EAEREE 2 F 2
ending on or before 31st March 2020 - 5,119
Expense relating to leases of low-value REEEEHERBRS  TREREBEEZ
assets, excluding short-term leases of MHARE
low-value assets 685 91
Variable lease payments not included in Rt 2 E 8 ERR EZ Al ZHAEN K
the measurement of lease liabilities 9,502 1,222
COVID-19-related rent concession COVID-198RFE £ ER (1,415) -
Notes: B

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
approximately HK$8,799,000 (2020: HK$13,389,000). This
amount primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under new tenancy agreements.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is set out in Note 26.

As disclosed in Note 3, the Group has early adopted the
Amendment to HKFRS 16, Leases, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions, and applies the practical expedient introduced
by the Amendment to all eligible rent concessions received
by the Group during the period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

(i)  Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use

The Group holds several buildings for its trading of
watches business, where its facilities are primarily
located. The Group is the registered owner of these
property interests, including the whole or part of
undivided share in the underlying land. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests from their previous registered owners, and
there are no ongoing payments to be made under the
terms of the land lease, other than payments based
on rateable values set by the relevant government
authorities. These payments vary from time to time and
are payable to the relevant government authorities.

(if) = Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its warehouses and retail stores through
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of two to five years. Lease payments are
usually increased every one years to reflect market
rentals.

During the year ended 31st March 2020 and as announced
by the Company on 19th March 2020, the Group was
informed by a major supplier that it will no longer supply its
timepieces to the Group’s Hong Kong authorised retail store
(the “Hong Kong store”) after mid-August 2020. Upon further
negotiation by the management of the Group, the supply was
extended to mid-February 2021.

Due to such termination of supply, the management of the
Group expected a significant drop in revenue and therefore
had performed an impairment review of the recoverable
amount on the property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets related to the Hong Kong store. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of the Hong Kong store was allocated to
one cash generating unit (“CGU”) within the sale of watches
segment.

The recoverable amount of the relevant CGU was determined
on the basis of value in use calculations. Value in use
calculations was based on cash flow projections prepared
from financial forecasts approved by the management. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculation related
to the estimation of cash flows which included budgeted
sales and expected gross margins during the budget period
which had been determined based on past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

During the year ended 31st March 2020, the Group
recognised full impairment losses of approximately
HK$102,922,000 related to the property, plant and
equipment within the sale of watches segment.

R §5 ER R B 5F

14. W% - BBRRE (1)
Hiat o ()

(©)

EREEE (&)
() HIEEREELHREF I HAEE

ﬁT/i

AEEREZHEBTHETEERERSE
% RERBZIEMAN AEER
%Zii%%%¥(E?ﬁﬁ%ﬁi%%%@i%ﬂ

DR D EER) EMEE A - R&E
] 1) A SEAT A A TR 2 KA MR )
FREa REBETWEONGERBEAR
B S RIR R R U AR Y AR E R
fER = M HE R I - BREAMN KA
BE NI R E) - WM T A BBUT SR -

(i) HEBAZEMHEENE

FREERSE ~AEEDERFERE
M EEREEERTEEMNET -
M#%%ZW*@ SHIR—MR AR
AF -HENKBES —FEMUAR
i -

Fﬁi:§:§¢*H*+ SN EYE
MARNBR =TT F=A+NBFMAMH -
$EI%E ZEBHEREMN ER=-F
—EFENAFEBETBRANER 2 EBET
TEE(EBEHHEEELESK KX E
EEEEE—SERE  #HERLERE-ZT
Z—FZ A

AREERE  ASETEEEREERA
AR TR A EBEMRBYE - #es

BEARCERAEEE 2T B S EBEST
BERSE - AETRENE  B5EHENY
¥ BERBEARFERAREEESREZE
ﬁ?iﬁ%ﬁj\ﬁﬁ‘?z—@fﬁﬁéiﬁﬁ(Bﬁﬁé
H B o

HERSELSMA T RESENREER
EBEMNAEMEE - £AEEFEEZERK
EEEMENTBIRAMBHENRSRER
AoERMEERFENEMIZRRERSE
st ER  EhERREBEBERERER
EBHmSERNEMMEENREH AN
HHERRIEHREMNE -

ﬁi 7_7¢ ﬂ + Etif%ﬁ*
zlx‘i EREREED B E - KBS ERE
BREEUREFB4J102,922,000/8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. R&MF

2021 2020
—E=-—F S
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

At valuation HEYE
At the beginning of the year REH) 343,772 362,776
Disposal & (8,719) -
Fair value gains/(losses) NHERE (BE) 3,130 (17,400)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EE A EELE 1,478 -
Translation difference BmE =R 2,353 (1,604)
At the end of the year RER 342,014 343,772

The Group’s property interests held to earn rentals are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to
seven years, with an option to renew the lease after that date at
which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

Note:

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

10| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

AEBERFEARRESNMEREIRAAIAE
BAFE - TDBERAREMEALR -

ASEEEERRERANE - BO—ROS
RUMESHE  WARREROBEED B
B A& G BT - BEA DL FRET
SREMHK -

e
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15.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(@)

15. R&ME (1§)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using

Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which

fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant

unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.

(a)

R §5 ER R B 5F

BREMENARAETE (])

/A

EER (%)

FE_MHEE: AREAEERAS
—REE BRERBIERE
FE—F R KREBEKRTA
BRZBE - TABERZEES
Hi 58RI T ER 2 8z -

E-MEE: AREAEERAE
RAAIE R 8% -

Fair value measurements as at
31st March 2021 categorised into
R-ZB-_—-E=A=+—-H2Z

AREFESE
Fair value
at
31st March
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=ZZB=—F
=A=+—8
ZRNE F1BR F2BR HIBR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value REMEAIARE
measurement =
Investment properties: TEYE
- Hong Kong —FE 231,580 - - 231,580
- Mainland China — R B KR 25,311 - - 25,311
- Switzerland —Im* 13,575 - - 13,575
- United Kingdom —EH 71,548 - - 71,548
342,014 - - 342,014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

15. R&ME (1§)

(a)

REMENARESE ()

(i

R EER(E)

Fair value measurements as at

31st March 2020 categorised into

RZTZTF=A=+—HZ
AREHESTE
Fair value
at
31st March
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZT_FF
=A=+—H
ZRNnAE F1BHR F2REHR FIER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FETT FET FrET
Recurring fair value BREMEARE
measurement iE
Investment properties: "EWME
— Hong Kong — &% 232,380 - - 232,380
— Mainland China — R B KR 33,326 - - 33,326
- Switzerland —F+ 12,124 - - 12,124
— United Kingdom —EKE 65,942 - - 65,942
343,772 - - 343,772
During the years ended 31st March 2021 and 2020, REBEE_ZT-_—FR-_Z-_FF=H

there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31st March 2021 and 2020. The valuations of
investment properties located in () Hong Kong and
the PRC; (ii) Switzerland and (jiij) United Kingdom as
at 31st March 2021 and 2020 were carried out by
Cushman & Wakefield Limited, Bolliger Immobilier and
Capital Chartered Surveyors respectively, the firm of
independent professional qualified valuers with recent
experience in the location and category of properties
being valued. The Group’s finance manager and
the chief financial officer have discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim
and annual reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. 128 MZE (8)
(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) BREMENARESS (8)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) FBE=ZERLILEFEEH
Relationship of
Range or unobservable
Valuation Key weighted inputs to
techniques unobservable inputs average fair value
BER FUBEEE
R E M TEFUBRZEE miEFH HARERR
Investment properties Market comparison Premium/(discount) (13)%-(4)% The higher
located in the PRC approach to transaction price (2020: (34)% (1 )%) the adjusted
NAPEZEEDE MG 8 (to reflect location, (ZZE-F4 : transaction price,
age and maintenance) (34)%-(1)%) the higher the
RBEHRZEE (Frg) fair value
(M2 - B8 RRE) & %&x%m&
e ARER
Investment properties Market comparison Premium/(discount) (41)%-4% The higher
located in Hong Kong approach to transaction price (2020: (27)% 15%) the adjusted
NRBEBZIREYE 35 L BUA (to reflect location, (ZZ=-F 4 : transaction price,
age and maintenance) 27)%-15% ) the higher the
RS EEZRE/ () fair value
(AR B2 ~ 1R MR E) & %x%fﬁ‘éﬁ%
Investment properties Income capitalisation ~ Capitalisation rate (derived 9% The higher the
located in Switzerland approach from monthly market rent) (2020: 9%) capitalisation rate,
fRIm L 2 IREM% WA BRI E BEREEE(BEATS (ZZ2 %% the lower the
HEeTE) 9%) fair value
BERfbE RS
RAERE
Market monthly rent rate SFr12 The higher
mEgAMRe % (2020: SFr10) the monthly
per square metre  market rent rate,
(SR TN the higher the
12f%i)£EB fair value
(ZZ2 25 BA™S
105 1 JAEB) Hexms
KAERS
Investment properties Market comparison Premium/(discount) to GBP1,791-2,852 The higher
located in United approach transaction price (to (2020: GBP1,421- the adjusted
Kingdom mH L EE reflect location, age and 1,579) transaction price,
NRRBEZ R EME maintenance) per square feet the higher the fair
RH5BRZEE/ (%) BEHR value
(AMimd  BRRRE) 1,791-2,8525 8 KRR HER
(ZZ2=ZZF: B AAEAR
1,421-1,579% %)
The fair value of investment properties located in Hong NARES DERERZEEMEZ
Kong, the PRC and the United Kingdom is determined /Ajﬂﬁfjﬁiﬁﬁ IS EOEAETE - HEL
using market comparison approach by reference to 2ENHLEBRYMERTFFREFH
recent sales price of comparable properties on a price KEREEAE Z7:AHEBE BE
per square feet or meter basis, adjusted for a premium REBYWELSE 7T an@BodrE (M
or discount specific to the quality of the Group’s TEASNE X B EATE) (EH TR
properties compared to the recent sales. Higher MELEEBTEEBENT SRS HEH
premium for higher quality properties will result in a HAEMBIZARENTRS
higher fair value measurement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The fair value of investment properties located in
Switzerland is determined using income capitalisation
approach by reference to the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties and assessed by
reference to the rental achieved in the lettable units.
The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference
to the yield rate observed by the valuer for the similar
properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the
respective properties.

There has been no change from the valuation
techniques used in the prior year.

The valuation gains on investment properties
amounting to HK$3,130,000 (2020: valuation loss of
HK$17,400,000) are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

(b) At 31st March 2021, certain investment properties of
HK$318,939,000 (2020: HK$222,080,000) were pledged as
securities for bank loans as detailed in Note 27.

(c) At 31st March 2020, the Group’s investment properties
outside Hong Kong with carrying amount of HK$5,459,000
are registered under the name of other persons in trust for
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R BI 5T
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BEEE
Trademarks
[k
2021 2020
—E_—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHAT FHET
Cost: 2N
At 1st April REA—H 276 -
Acquisition through bus on (note 34) & i@ E S HF U (M15E34) = 267
Addition byl = 9
At 31st Marc 276 276
Accumul ation and impairment:
At 1st Ag - -
Charge = 34 -
Impairi 242 -
At 31 276 -
\
Car
At 31 - 276

FRZBEBADHA
Jeb o

SERERZITTHE

The a arge for the 2d in “Adminis N
expen solidated s orofit or loss. H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

17. GOODWILL 17. BHE
2021 2020
—E=-—F S
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost: B
At 1st April R A—H - -
Acquisition through business combination (Note 34) % 8 ¥ 75 & 4 U 88 (13534) - 19,895
At 31st March R=A=+—H - 19,895
Accumulated impairment losses: A REERE :
At 1st April REA—H - -
Impairment loss A EE = 19,895
At 31st March R=HA=+—H - 19,895
Carrying amount: REE :
At 31st March R=—A=+—H - -
Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing O2E28HeEEE N 2iF AR
goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to a CGU as AEZEEECOREZERSEEEM - HI/WT:
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EZTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Gourmet business EREK
- Hong Kong - BB - -
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on BeELEUz BB HERNFERERTE
value-in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions. BT BERERERRL BHETETHABRES
The calculations use in cash flow projections based on financial BE#ENET THE VM REBEEELEZIRER
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. sEAmETE -
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using LTEEBBZIRESRENEA T 2 f 5t
the estimated growth rates stated below. These growth rates are EREE S ERMAITEREDYHRIBLE
consistent with forecasts included in industry reports specific to HBEMRETEEENTERN —2 -

the industry in which the CGU operates.
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17.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (Continued)

The following table sets out the key assumptions for the CGU:

17. B2 (8)

R §5 ER R B 5F

TERIBEELBINEERST

2021 2020

—E-—& TEC-TE

% %

- Budgeted gross margin -TEEEN= N/A RiE A 62.3-63.5
- Long term growth rate —REERE N/A RiE A 3.0
- Pre-tax discount rate —FR 750 A AL 2R X N/A REA 16.4

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market development.
Long-term growth rate is the weighted average growth rate
used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period. The
rate is consistent with forecasts included in industry reports.
The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant unit.

W I8

RETHEETEREEMNRZEENEERE
REFEFAMREBZ FHENE - RAREN

=M MEEA TS ER - REERETARE
EIRE USRS REN I T RE o (&
BTERERNIR B - IRAZMBERAH
Al SRR EE B E A 2 E R -

At 31st March 2020, the recoverable amount of the CGU was as R-E-—ZEF=-A=+—H ReELBEN2A
follows. W El & REEH P T X o
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Recoverable amount Al Y o] & B8 N/A ~EHA -

During the year ended 31st March 2020, due to the unforeseen
business environment for the gourmet business and the short-fall
of recoverable amount and net liabilities position, impairment loss
of approximately HK$19,895,000 on goodwill was recognised.

BE_Z ZTF-_A=+—BHILFE ARER
(B2 AERERRE  dhoeERRRF
BEAMR - B HEREE R AR E%19,895,000/8

JT °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R BfI 5T
18. SUBSIDIARIES 18. MBS
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st March UNTRINVN ZBE-Z—F=ZA=Z=F+—HFEMNBER
2021: GIESE
Place of

incorporation or
establishment
or registration/

Paid up
issued ordinary
share capital/

Proportion of

issued share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary business registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
EFR AR 322 AR L BENCRTEE EDRRBERTRE
WEAR AR HETHYLE BRA/EMEE MRz TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# i
AC (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
KERZES 10,0003 T 100% - RERK
Juvenia Montres S.A. Switzerland SFr.1,875,000 - 100% Assembling and
Tt 1,875,000 L% £ marketing of gold and
jewellery watches
- 100% ERERECHESERERE
BEEZERB(EE)ES The People’s Republic RMB128,403,300 - 100% Watch trading
BRAH of China*
mEARAME  128,403,3007T AR - 100% BRES
BEES LR BRA A The People’s Republic RMB9,715,200 - 100% Watch trading
of China*
mEARAME 9,715,200t AR - 100% BRES
Time City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares - 100% Watch trading
BRERA(BE)ERAA BB 3,000,0007 - 100% BREF
Juvenia (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong 5,000,000 shares - 100% Brand development and
Limited watch trading
B2 (FB)ARARA Bt 5,000,000/ - 100% mERERREERE S
Accord Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong 3,500,100 shares - 100% Brand development and
(International) Limited watch trading
Ve @EHKkE (BR) BRAA ) 3,500,100% - 100% REBERELES
Wakmann Watch (International) Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100% - Brand development and
Company Limited watch trading
HRREBRRERAA e 20,000,000/ - 100% miEERREERES
Wakmann Watch (Shanghai) The People’s Republic RMB4,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
Trading Limited of China*
BRA(L8) EREHERRA HREARLRME" 4,000,000 A RHE - 100% EHEH
Asia Commercial Property British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Property holding and
Holdings Limited Hong Kong investment
EERLEE /B4 17T 100% - WEFBRERE
The Eav’s Group Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Investment holding
EELEEERAA £ 28T 100% - REER
The Eav’s Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Property development
EELBRERDA 0 28T - 100% MERE
The Eav’s Group (Gourmet) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Investment holding
EEHEE(ZR)ERATA 0 28T 100% - REER
* Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a RIFFEARKMBEZZEMAIEBERZE -

wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

19. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 19. }ﬁﬂﬂfﬁ%{-AEfmeﬁ“ﬂﬁzu&ﬂEIﬂ/If
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR NAREHABEZREE
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
—E=-—F T TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FrET
Unlisted equity securities, at fair value IELMBRAES  BRAAE 10,106 14,133
Classified as: DR
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss #Z QAR BT ABHZ 2SR EE
- Non-current (Note (i) — I B (B 3EG)) 7,773 14,133
Equity instruments at fair value through other BRALEFAEMEER G2
comprehensive income (Note (i) % 42 T B (B 5% (i) 2,333 -
10,106 14,133
Note: HtaE -
(i)  The fair value of club debentures in Hong Kong has been determined () BEGMEFZAABENZ2R_FHMELZER
by reference to the bid price quoted in the second hand market. mEE
(i)  Unlisted equity securities in the United States represented (i) EBFrTE@REFEARREEORE 85
investments that were strategic in nature and was therefore classified HMARARBEFAREMEZEAREZEMEE -
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.
20. INVENTORIES 20. =58
2021 2020
—E-—F S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Watches Ei 73
Raw materials [ AR 37,168 53,991
Work in progress 2P 400 427
Finished goods R R 73,764 141,574
111,332 195,992
At 31st March 2021, certain inventories of HK$Nil (2020: RNR-_E-—F=F=+—H BFFEZESET(=
HK$62,135,000) were pledged as securities for bank loans as T _FF 62,135,000/ T) O IRIBIEARITTER
detailed in Note 27. NIER - SIS SR K27 -
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B RS R R BfI 5T
20. INVENTORIES (Continued) 20. F& (88)
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRAMZWIAGEERR I FESENDIN
expense and included in the consolidated statement of profit or mr
loss is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —TZEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold PEFEZEREEE 937,503 597,094
Write-down of inventories FEMOR 3,989 11,730
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMUR B E (8,683) (7,554)
932,809 601,270
The reversal of write down of inventories were made due to an HREHEEROTMNE B G E R FEE
increase in the estimated net realisable value as a result of change o A E R FEE MUR e o
in consumer preferences.
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B5 M H fth EULERR
2021 2020
—E- & —E-EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance 2 5 EUERR - KR EEEE
- Third parties —F£=7 68,756 24,519
- Related parties — FERA 6,996 6,705
75,752 31,224
Other receivables E i B AR 3R
- Third parties = E 12,732 4,533
- Related parties — E@ A A 2,189 1,037
14,921 5,570
Financial assets measured at amortised costs ABESS A E 2 o mEE 90,673 36,794
Deposits and prepayments e MIEAFRIE 33,924 28,558
124,597 65,352
Analysed as: Ak =
Non-current ERE 9,306 18,410
Current mE 115,291 46,942
124,597 65,352
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. SR HEthEUKRIR (£8)
(a) Aging analysis (a) BRESPDIR
The Group allows credit period of up to 180 days to its AEBEETHEETHNEBAE180H ZEEH -
customers. The aging analysis of the trade receivables at the RIEER - BRIBBRZERA B RNBREERE
end of the reporting period based on invoice date and net of Z2ESEWERZIRESTMT ¢
loss allowance, is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-— —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FrET
Up to 90 days ENHiZ=90R 67,846 13,561
91 to 180 days 91£180H 485 8,214
181 to 365 days 181%E365H 1,081 1,987
Over 365 days 365H A & 6,340 7,462
75,752 31,224
22. TRADING SECURITIES 22. BHEE
2021 2020
—E=—F —E_THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity securities at fair value TR ES AR E 510 382
The fair value of listed equity securities is based on their closing FHERFHEZ A AABUREHAREWHTZEA
bid price at the end of the reporting period. BAEEMW-
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW 23. BRI AMREDEE2GEESER
INFORMATION
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BHERBSEFEMOIE:
2021 2020
—E=-—fF —ZETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FrET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERS 130,663 69,121
Cash and cash equivalents in RirE MBI & &
the consolidated statement of FERSMERIIT
financial position and the MBS RRCEEY
consolidated statement
of cash flows 130,663 69,121
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank R—_E-_—F=ZA=+—HAEEEFRHZ
and in hand of approximately HK$116,805,000 (equivalent RehReEEMRRROLFERSOA
to approximately RMB98,759,000) held in the PRC as at 116,805,000/% 7t (#H55 74 4798,759,0007T A
31st March 2021 (2020: HK$45,580,000 (equivalent to RiE) (ZZ =T 4 : 45,580,000/ 7t (H 5
approximately RMB41,742,000)). The conversion of RMB R #941,742,000C ARE)) - ARBHEL
denominated balance into foreign currencies and the MRER B IMNE NZEINETERNIRITIE R
remittance of such foreign-currency denominated bank SRR ER X5 B BT E M INE
balances and cash out of the PRC are subject to the BEIREN REEBREE -
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
During the year, cash at banks carry interest at market FR - RPTZRSIEMBENEREE @ §F
rates which range from 0.001% to 0.25% (2020: 0.001% to NFRFL0.001%E025% 2 (ZE=F
0.35%) per annum. The bank balances are deposited with F 1 0.001%Z20.35%)  RITAEBT A&
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. WA B AL 2 EBRERNIRT
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. B HthE{TIRR
2021 2020
=EB=-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables BB EMNRN
- Third parties - %=5 6,542 8,672
- Related parties — BERQA 13 -
6,555 8,672
Other payables and accrued charges HtENERRRETER 33,286 36,274
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost DE#EkAtE 2 emasE 39,841 44,946
Rental received in advance Bl e 75 94
Deposits received = e &0 3,046 3,344
Other tax payable H i fE < B 18 56,955 50,203
99,917 98,587
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B ¥5 2R 2R Bt 5E
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 24. BERHEbERBESR (8)
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FEESREMmENERENRN —FERELRE
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on BAEWA  RILERKEE -
demand.
The aging analysis of trade payables based on date of receipt of RB|ERAR REBERIERZ A B S EMNE
goods as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: K2R T -
2021 2020
—E_——F —EZEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Up to 90 days BENHAZ=90H 2,707 5,321
91 to 180 days 91£180H 294 127
181 to 365 days 181£365H = -
Over 365 days 365H A k£ 3,554 3,224
6,555 8,672
25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. &l
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Contract liabilities EHEaE
- Deposits from customers -BEFPZe 2,441 1,224
26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. fHE&fE
At 31st March 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows: RZTEZ—F=A=+—H EEEHEAEH
T
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within 1 year —FR 68,556 77,425
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREWFA 18,445 75,024
After 2 years but within 5 years MFRERFA 9,244 20,822
27,689 95,846
96,245 173,271
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27.

28.

BANK LOANS 27. RITER
2021 2020
—E-—& —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank loans, secured |ITER - B 164,090 161,403
As at 31st March 2021 and 2020, the bank loans were due for Eé\:z?——i)ji_g TFE=ZA=+—H " E1T
repayment within one year or on demand. EER—FERNIBPRILERES -

During the years ended 31st March 2021 and 2020 and as at 31st
March 2021 and 2020, the Group was able to meet all the financial
covenants imposed by the banks.

The bank loans are carried at amortised cost.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group’s bank loans ranged from 1.32% to
2.57% (2020: 2.35% to 3.42%) per annum.

As at 31st March 2021 and 2020, the secured bank loans were
secured by (i) pledged of assets as disclosed in Note 36, (ii)
corporate guarantees given by the Company, (iii) subordination of
the payables to the group companies owed by Time City (Hong
Kong) Limited and (iv) assignment of rental income from certain
investment properties.

BE_T--—FR_FTTF=-A=1+—HLHF
EHRER B —FRIZ-EF=A=+—
B A&BE RSN R RITIRHNME T B R -

IRITE AR H A AR

AREBZRTEREBRIR (MERAHFR)
HEN TR EB1.32%E2.57% (— T - FF ¢
2.35%%E3.42%) 1% o

REE_—FR_F_TFE-_A=+—H F&
ﬁﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁk)}E()MTESGFHBZ&%E’J%TFTEW (ii)
MARBREZARER  (REEERE(F
) BB R EIREE R RZ RN RIE R(v)H
ETREMEASKRARN D BLIERER -

LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR 28. EBEE

2021 2020

—EZ-F —ECRF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

At beginning of the year RE ) - -
Addition during the year F NI - 5,000
Repayment during the year FREE - (5,000)
At end of the year RE R = -
The loans were unsecured, bearing interest at the Hong Kong ZERVEER UESELSELRITERAA

dollar prime rate as quoted by the Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) plus 1% per annum and
repayable on demand.
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Bt ¥ SR 2R Bt 51
29. DEFERRED TAX 29. JERETHIA
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (a) PRAZEEREESERSE:
() Movement of each component of deferred tax assets () BEHEEEZBEZSFHAKEGZ
and liabilities #ZE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FARGETERAERPERREL
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial HEEE,/(8RF) 2HEKIHREE
position and the movements during the year are as A
follows:
Revaluation Undistributed
of profits of PRC Write-down
Deferred tax arising from: NTEEEEBERE properties Taxlosses  subsidiaries  of inventories Total
0% REREAF
ENifE HEES AATER HARE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA7 FiAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1st Apil 2019 R-Z-7£MA-A (13:309) 57 (7,900 2,361 (18,791)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss ﬁu&%)/ TAER - 25 2,700) - (2,448)
At31st March 2020 SRIFFZAzt-0 (13309 39 (10,600 231 21239
At 1st April 2020 \=T-SEMA-F (13,309 309 (10,600) 2,361 (21,239)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (%) /HAES 370 - (3,100) - 2,730)
A 81st March 2021 W=®=7=5=1-7 (129%9) 9 (13,700) 2361 (23969)
(i)  Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial (i) 45BN EE R
position
2021 2020
—B=-—fF —TZEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net deferred tax asset recognised in RERE MR R R
the consolidated statement of R IE B =R A
financial position 2,418 2,418
Net deferred tax liability recognised in RERA BRI R ER D
the consolidated statement of BREHIBEAEFE
financial position (26,387) (28,657)
(23,969) (21,239)
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognised

The Group has allowable tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$502,246,099 (2020: HK$427,500,000)
which are mainly arisen prior to the capital restructuring in
1997, that are available for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. None
of tax losses of was recognised as deferred tax assets.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

Tax losses of approximately HK$5,073,000 (2020:
HK$16,384,000) attributable to the continuing operations
in the PRC are available for offsetting against future profits
that may be carried forward for five years for the PRC
Corporate Income Tax purpose. Tax losses of approximately
HK$39,265,000 (2020: HK$39,265,000) attributable to
the continuing operations in Switzerland are available for
offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward
for seven years for Switzerland Profits Tax purposes. No
deferred tax assets were recognised in respect of these tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Withholding tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which took
effect from 1st January 2008, a 5% or 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from the PRC effective from 1st January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign enterprise investors. On 22nd February 2008,
Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted
out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31st
December 2007 determined based on the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations are exempted from the withholding
tax. As at 31st March 2021, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the subsidiaries amounted
to approximately HK$152,718,000 (2020: HK$118,185,000)
has been recognised as the Company controls the dividend
policy of the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC and it has
been determined that it is probable that the profits earned by
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future. In the view of the improvement of
the financial performance and market condition, the directors
of the Company considered that the deferred tax liabilities
of approximately HK$13,700,000 (2020: HK$10,600,000) in
respect of the undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries
should be recognised as at 31st March 2020.
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29, EIETHIA (45)

(b)

(c)

RERZEEHIBEESERGRE
AEBERBELEZAEE mmk;gs
184 5502,246,099/8 T (— T =~ T4 ¢
427,500,000/ 70) * EER — N NEFRA
BHAES TﬁﬁﬁA}fﬁféiEﬂEFEE’J“ﬂﬁk
REZRFEF - BB BHBBWHERA
TRIBE EE o B AR IOH FI A uf’EtHTE/ElJ aﬁz
WERFEEERRECHELE - RIFR
IRBEG - FHIBEEETS®E -

MPRACERBHRmME iﬂ«“‘%i%ﬂa
R B 2 B 55 518 495,073,0008 L (— T —
T 16,384,0005%57‘5) + A FA B 88 oK 2R
mA c WAEAE  RBRIELTHEL **%
i“mim“réﬂa 4939,265,0008 L (—E =%
£ :39,265,000/%8 7T) + A R K 85 oK 2k A
B (A AEEFRELTRER) - ARKIEF
IR WEREEBRERER AR
EFHBEE -

Fa 05

BIEE-_ZTEN\F-—F—BRESNPEH
EMERL RAMECEREESTIRE
BB e B RI5%R10%TEF T - 5 —
TZENF—A—HBEER - HPHEIHNE
TEREEMBR AR ZEATERIEE
BRI IESEBINEERAT - R 2F
ENF_A-+_B HEMREELBEEM
B Fi(2008)15% - EBH —TEtF+ =8
E+—H%%%ﬁﬂ§ﬁ&%ﬁ¢ﬁ%%
BIRBEEBEREB G EREENETE
%%%ﬁmm W_ZE-—F=ZH= +f
B BARARHEHANEERPEKE R
K9 AR B UK IE%EET&EK%IW?
AR E R BB F B E R ER A RED
EHIK  WERNEBRR KD REF 2 T
1 2 82 49152,718,00008 T (— & — T 4 ¢
118,185,000/ 70) B TR - BENI %
BRTABMNRE  ARBEERE BN
T _EFZAZ+—HEREHEPEHBEL
B Z AR 9K % F #E R #913,700,000/8 7T (—
T — T4 110,600,000 T) IELEFR IS EE ©
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B RS ER TP 5T
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A%k
Nominal

value per Number of
share shares Amount
SREE RHEAE &8
HK$ ’000 HK$°000
o F& FET

At 31st March 2020, 1st April 2020 F=A=+—8"

March 2021 “ECZFWA-AR
—E-—%=A=+—H 500,000
Issued and fully p BT MR
At 31st March 2 020 and 31st R -ZF =
March 202 —-_=
o .2 747,123 149,424
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31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS 31. BB REISH
(a) Share Option Scheme (a) UBAZIESHEN
On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company RZEZE_FAAZ+H  AARIMKREHE
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the B REE (S _F BT
“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 2  —EET - FHRELEZ Y BN EE
Share Option Scheme is to encourage qualifying grantees to EERERANBNDAERAR RHERREE 2
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its MR ARRRIRERO 2EBE —TZT =
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders FRERET M E EBARAEGAR RS
as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option {E =] BT 88 A B s (a1 Bt BB 2 B A (] B B =X
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related FEERAR R RIEA KRS
consultant, agent, representative or advisor of the Company R85 (i) A AN A B 8 AT ] B BB A 7] 3k fn] Bt
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or BARREEYS R 2 EaHER - K12
consultant who provide goods or services to the Company P e ER M (i) AR R RS BT BB A B sk
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iii) any customer of G = NGl A s S CIE=S 17 (1Y) VNN R e 2 )
the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iv) any BEAR 2 EKBREBECERY -
business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any
affiliate.
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: () WEZEREEEWT
Period during
Category of No. of share which share
eligible options options are Exercise Contractual
persons granted Vesting exercisable price per life of
BERAL REH Date of grant  conditions ATE share options
ZHE BREHE BRERSE BEKHE BRENER BROKEE BREZGHE
Directors 8,139,075  31st March 2011 1 year from the date 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344 10 years
- Tk of grant (20%) 30th March 2021 1.34475 1T T
ZA=+-2 HREASBE—F(20%) —T-"F=A=t+EHZE
2 years from the date “E_-§=fA=+H
of grant (20%)
hE T ASEMmE (20%)
3 years from the date
of grant (20%)
HE LB ESR=F (20%)
4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B A RN F (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
HE LA SRAF (20%)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued) 31. IRilgtH{Ersihl (&)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) BEAZIEE 2 (48)
The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: () BHEZEZREHENT : (5)
(Continued)
Period during
Category of No. of share which share
eligible options options are Exercise Contractual
persons granted Vesting exercisable price per life of
BERAL R Date of grant  conditions AfE share options
AR BREXE REAY BEAKHL BRENER BRITEE BREZGHH
Employees 34,917,365 31st March 2011 1 year from the date 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344 10 years
BT —E—F at grant (20%) 30th March 2021 13443 7T T
ZA=+-A ARLAHE-F(20%) ZB2--"F=A=tAZ
2 years from the date - -—F-H=1H
of grant (20%)
MR LB R E (20%)
3 years from the date
of grant (20%)
hE T A e =5 (20%)
4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
i A A M E (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
m & AR RE (20%)
Director 10,022,061  26th October 2011 1 year from the date 25th October 2012 to HK$0.897 10 years
B TRk at grant (20%) 25th October 2021 0.897/% T T
TAZ+7E ARLHASE—F(20%) —F-2FTA-TIH
2 years from the date BT i
of grant (20%) +AZT1H
MR LB HBERE (20%)
3 years from the date
of grant (20%)
mE T ASRE=F (20%)
4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B it B H R E (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
mEHASERE (20%)
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31.

(a)

(b)

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

31. RigwmEEM (&)

Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) BBARIESTS (48)
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (i) BEREZHE RNETFHITEERT
share options are as follows:
2021 2020
b —ECTE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
hEFH BREHE ik B FERRESR
TEE 1B
HK$ HK$
V-3 B
Outstanding at the beginning 4 9114 AR 17
of the year 2.688 5,975,983 2.688 7,229,838
Forfeited during the year F R8I 2.688 (5,975,983) 2.688 (1,253,855)
Outstanding at the end FRERITEE
of the year - 2.688 5,975,983
Exercisable at the end FRALTE
of the year - 2.688 5,975,983

The options outstanding at 31st March 2020 had
exercise prices of HK$2.688 and a weighted average
remaining contractual lives of 1 year.

Share Award Plan 2010

On 13th September 2010, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share award plan (the “Share
Award Plan 20107).

The Share Award Plan 2010 is a ten-year discretionary share
award and ownership plan. It is primarily for encouraging
or facilitating the holding of shares by those selected
employees of the Group who, as determined by the Board,
are eligible to participate in the plan and to whom new
shares are or will be awarded. The Directors will make use of
the plan to award new shares to those selected employees
of the Group on suitable terms as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the years ended 31st March 2021 and 2020 and as at 31st
March 2021 and 2020, there was no outstanding award
granted under the Share Award Plan 2011.
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

32, R\ S) M FEAR IR E R G RS E

(a) AATFHBAMRE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Fff 5 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN s 278,817 281,654
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables ot JE U AR SR 232 319
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREFEY 347 941
579 1,260
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHE A B 3 E 13,978 13,982
Other payables H th & AR X 3,692 3,430
17,670 17,412
Net current liabilities mEEEFEH (17,091) (16,152)
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABHAERE 261,726 265,502
Net assets EEFE 261,726 265,502
Capital and reserves EAXR B
Share capital A% 2 30 149,424 149,424
Reserves =] 32(b) 112,302 116,078
Total equity attributable FEREAQATFEFA
to owners of the Company Z AR 261,726 265,502

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th June 2021 and signed on its behalf by:
RITBZ—FRXAZTN\BEEFTGRBLEENE TATINEERREE

Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan

15 I 8%

Director

BE

Eav Xin Qi Rosanna
BHH
Director

EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF 32. hAGIGIEIRIAERGEIEES (58)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) RATFFKEERS
The change in the reserves of the Company during the years REBEE T -_—EFER-_TE_TFE=RA=+—
ended 31st March 2021 and 2020 are as follows: AIEFEMAzARRREESSHNOT -
Retained
Share Capital profits/
Share option  redemption  Contributed (accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses) Total
BRE REER,/ N
R 175 E i ErRERE BABRR (RETEB) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1st April 2019 R_E-NFNA—H = 11,930 7,263 10,734 58,202 88,129
Profit for the year REEGF - - - - 47,075 47,075
Other comprehensive income £t 2 H i & - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income  REE2E K EE
for the year - - F - 47,075 47,075
Transaction with owners HEFALRS
Transfer to accumulated REREZNHEAR
losses upon forfeiture of ATEE
share options - (2,024) - - 2,024 -
Dividend declared TR S - - - - (19,126) (19,126)
At 31st March 2020 R-E-_2&
ZA=1-H - 9,906 7,263 10,734 88,175 116,078
At 1st April 2020 RZE-ZEMA—H - 9,906 7,263 10,734 88,175 116,078
Loss for the year EEEFR - - - -

(3,776) (3,776)
Other comprehensive income HftiZE K& - = - - - -

Total comprehensive loss ~ AEE2EFELHE
for the year - - - - (3,776) (3,776)
Transaction with owners HEEAZRE
Transfer to accumulated REBRER KHE AR
losses upon forfeiture of TEE
share options - (9,906) - - 9,906 -

At 31st March 2021 R-B=-§
=A=t-H - - 7,263 10,734 94,305 112,302
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

ﬂ
ﬂ

Notes:

(@

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”).

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with the
revaluation on properties reclassified to investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for leasehold land
and buildings in Note 2(g).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2(u).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve was set up upon debt restructuring which will be
used for the purpose of repurchase of issued and fully paid ordinary
share capital.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the capital reduction
effective on 28th March 2007. The balance of contributed surplus
account may be utilised in the future in accordance with the
Bye-Laws and the Companies Act, including distribution to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements on making distributions in the Companies Act.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve relates to share options granted to
employees under the Company’s employee share option plan. Further
information about share option is set out in Note 31.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of equity investments designated at FVOCI
under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting period (see
Note 2(e)).

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies Act, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

At 31st March 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$Nil (2020: HK$Nil)
subject to the restriction on the share premium account as stated
above.

R §5 ER R B 5F

. RS EAKR TR G R E ()

et -

(@) MBOEE
B s BRARE - NN\ —FAREQREE40
i (s fesT) ([REDED) A -

(b)  EffhfEE
EHHERRET P EEREMENMEETH
BRTES - WRRHK 2(g)TE A B & -1 ki
FHETERERE

() EHHEE
N EEDIERE N EG U BRETE LN
HIEN Z5 - ZEFERIBH 2T E O T ECR
BRI -

(d) MBAFEE
BARBEREBEABE L BARBERED T
KRB REBBA -

(e) HARER
REBZHANBBRRAEBARAR T +F
AT ABAERMEEERATEZS8E - A
ﬁ%%Z%%ﬂ%E%ﬁ%@ﬂ%W& ﬁi@

C BEARRELDIK - ENMERER TR
j/j&—ﬁfﬁ A I /flE*EIE“

()  BRERHE
BRERBLABEBREARRZEI BEETE
ETETZBEEE ARBREZE - SEHHE
RAKEE3T -

(@ 2ArERFE
ARERE (FEY) BENREMRFAERERE
B E AR IEE RE AR EF AL LEE
W ER E AR BRFFED (RHE26e)) °

(h FAIHSERE
REBRERRESWOG ARB 2RO EER
AU RAFMBDEADBE T ARBMRR

RZBE-—F=RA=+—80 XLEXAINZKH
BERMR  THIETARAFTAEAZFEER
BREATL(ZZTZF - TAERT) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk). The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities. These risks are limited by
the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and the Group’s
credit risk primarily arises from deposits at banks and
trade and other receivables.

Cash at banks are placed with licensed financial
institutions with high credit ratings. The Group monitors
the exposure to each single financial institution.

For trade and other receivables, credit checks are
part of the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal with overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amounts of trade and other receivables at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

33.

o 35 @ R E 12 (£8)
(a) HMIHEEBREZE (E)

() EEEEGE)

TR A B AR & B W e S B E R
LEZRUERO B ERBRER

receivables:
2021

—EBEC-—F

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEEE IREAE BEEE
% HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current (not past due) BNER (R H) 0% 67,777 -
Less than 90 days past due 11 2> 90K 0% 417 -
91-180 days past due #1E1915180K 0% 1,081 -
Over 180 days past due B HIEBR180K 29.89% 9,238 2,761
78,513 2,761

2020

—TTF

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEEEX REAE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$°000
THT FHET
Current (not past due) BIER (k@ 8) 0% 19,742 -
Less than 90 days past due 10 2> 190K 0% 1,300 -
91-180 days past due #HI912180K 0% 2,385 -
Over 180 days past due 10 2B B 180K 13.89% 9,055 1,258
32,482 1,258

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past three years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables.

BHERENENRBE=-FNERE
RERIGH » HRENTETHBIUAR
ok L €8 JRE S B4 9% B 0 IR B AROR - 3R
UL B ANk [ e W R IR TR A AT (R A
HIEAM 2 IR B R HMER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

33. MFHEREIR (F)

HHERER (F)

(i)

EEER (&)

FNERESRRER 2 BEBER
T

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-TF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Balance at 1st April HRIUA— B2z &% 1,258 1,258

Amounts written off during the year FRMGH S 58 - -

Impairment losses recognised during the year 4 A i 2 & &5 18 1,503 -

Balance at 31st March R=A=+—H2&#H 2,761 1,258
Other receivables H i P& W BR X

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12-month ECL. For the year ended 31st
March 2021 and 2020, the Group assessed the ECL for
other receivables and deposits were insignificant and
thus no loss allowance was recognised.

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(i)

R §5 ER R B 5F

o B IR E IR (4])

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBERE(4)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) HEEZEE ()
The following table details the remaining contractual T%ﬁ$%l§$téﬁﬂﬁ1iﬁ\$&iﬁﬁ
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the RZHBTEHIEA - ?’]ﬂiﬁﬁfﬁ
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on NWERTE (BIEUES qﬂﬁ_p (=
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest WFE - AR RN REB R ZIRTA =R
payments computed using contractual rates or, if SFE A BT )&ZJSEI—JQEﬁ;'%%ﬁ
floating, based on rates current at the end of the Nr&FBHBHTE
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
Specifically, for loans which contain a repayment on LEHE BESZERAZENE
demand clause which can be exercised at the creditor’s T2 REKEREERZ BT
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow AMBRERER A ERMNK (EMrﬁ
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be WEAESBE 2 EREEFESRE
required to pay, i.e. if the lenders were to invoke their REEEF) 2 ERHEZBESRE -
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
2021
—E--F
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years
BHRME R—FR SR—E48 SRWE
REE HRERELE RRER YRME BLIREF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables & 5 & H ft J& 7 BR 5% 39,841 39,841 39,841 - -
Bank loans RITEE 164,090 164,090 164,090 - -
Other lease liabilities HpHAEEE 96,245 100,660 70,936 19,352 10,372
300,176 304,591 274,867 19,352 10,372
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

o1 ¥ E IR E IR (4])

Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBERE(4)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) HEEZEE ()
2020
it S -2
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years
BHRFR R—%R ZR—F8 EANTES
REE HRengg# FIREX yNGES BLRAEF
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
78T FET 78T FET FET
Trade and other payables & 5 & E f JE 7 BR X 44,946 44,946 44,946 - -
Bank loans RITEE 161,403 161,403 161,403 - -
Other lease liabilities HtHEERE 173,271 182,806 83,692 77,429 21,685
379,620 389,155 290,041 77,429 21,685
(iii) ~ Foreign currency risk (iii)  SNE 2] @
Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are EERERRE ST A HUAFHAERE
denominated in a currency other than the functional ZERZINEEK AN EEEBIE -
currency of the entity to which they relate.
The Group’s exposure to currency risk is insignificant. AEEZz EERRMTEE
(iv) Interest rate risk (iv) FE 2%
Inte;esftI rate ri?k isf.the ri§kI thattthe fairt va!nef?r ftutu:e FEAKA—THeRMTAN AR AES
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate P S S I ER T

because of the changes in market interest rate.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank loans (Note 27).

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk
to ensure there are no more exposures to significant
interest rate movements and rates are relatively fixed.
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its debt obligations.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a)

(iv) Interest rate risk (Continued)

U]

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the
reporting period:

33. MFHEREIR (F)

HFEREE (8)
(iv) FIEEE (&)

(i  FI=#ER

TRFMARNERZ EERIRSH

RZMERR

2021 2020
—E--F S 32
Effective Effective
interest rates interest rates
LIRS RS
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
FET FHET
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE:
Lease liabilities HEAE 4.26-5.46 96,245 4.26-5.46 173,271
Variable rate borrowings: FEHEE:
Bank loans RAER 1.32-2.57 164,090 2.35-3.42 161,403
Total borrowings B 260,335 334,674
Fixed rate borrowings as a EERERBREE
percentage of total borrowings 7 B 5 36.97% 51.77%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 33. IERBRSIP (8)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HHERRBRE(E)
(iv) Interest rate risk (Continued) (iv) FIEE (&)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis @iy BWEREDW
At 31st March 2021, it is estimated that a R-_ZE-_—F=-—A=+—H &
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points AR B8R N IR 1001E £
in interest rate, with all other variables held BoMABEEMEHERFBZER
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s T BEHAEEFTROKEIDG
profit before taxation for the year and increase/ Fm D A 3Gk R BB,
decrease accumulated losses by approximately S #91,614,0008 L (T -
HK$1,641,000 (2020: HK$1,614,000). This is F:1,614,0008 ) W EE
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to HRASEREZEEERERT
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings. RER - raEm s Ml oY
Other components of consolidated equity would MESE s REMELE -
not change in response to the change in interest
rates.
The sensitivity analysis above has been EGURE AN 2 B E TR E A
determined assuming that the change in interest HREBEAMERAYEAL - WD
rates had occurred at the beginning of the #ZEESERNE B &FEEMN
reporting period and had been applied to the FEMEGE SR T AR
exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate J2, B o "% 10018 & 2 2 3 0 sl
interest bearing financial instruments in existence PIEBEBIGEE N FER
at that date. The 100 basis points increase or EHZHERRAEA &
decrease represents management’s assessment of o pEEBE T _ZTF=A
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over =+ —RHIEFEPBRE 2B
the period until the next annual reporting date. ERMBIREREERR -

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2020
has been prepared on the same basis.

Sensitivity analysis on bank balances is not HRAESEEEERRASERR
presented as the management of the Group H ¥ 2 A =g BRI A EK -
considers that the Group’s exposure to interest WA ERRITEREINBRE S
rate fluctuation is insignificant. i

0

SHe

FE

i

EEEHARAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

R §5 ER R B 5F

33. MFHEREIR (F)

(b) Capital management (b) BHEIR
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEEEBREA BIZABREERNZEE
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue AT A B ELE  BRELEERRA
as a going concern while maximising the return to owners HRETERSHETEEAZEN - FBREE
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The BeMANEGHEERNBEE AR  EHE
management reviews the capital structure by considering EHEARLEE - BER AXEBBUER
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each BEBEKEEZER  BBIARE - BT
class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its R RETHERKEBELORGEE @ LAEE
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, HBREERERE -
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and appropriate.
The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net AEENEEABHR(EAFAGBHRIAE
debt divided by the total equity. Net debt is calculated as EAER) B ESCER  ERFHETER
bank loans and loans from a director less bank deposits with ROEFRNEEEFRIBHEBR=EA 2R
maturity over three months, structured deposit and cash and TFER - EBEFRMRE RRESEYN
cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated statement REVBMRRARTR - RIERBIEMAER
of financial position. Total equity comprises all components o  REBEERBE—(EACEMNEESR
of equity. The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at B RKFE - RIEERZEERELL R
a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the N
reporting period were as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F S
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank loans (Note 27) RITER (M ZE27) 164,090 161,403
Lease liabilities (Note 26) HE & & (f17226) 96,245 173,271
260,335 334,674
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23)  #1& : & RE & =@ (M7723) (130,663) (69,121)
Net debt B FHE 129,672 265,553
Total equity T 408,742 341,409
Gearing ratio BEAGBHLE 31.7% 77.8%
(c) Equity price risk (c) MBREEIERR
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading AREBBEATKE FTESBESHES 2K
of listed securities classified as trading securities in the ZERER (WEAMERIRDPEHELE
consolidated statement of financial position. The sensitivity BAEBE) c BIRRMES I HREAREZR
analysis has been determined based on the exposure to ZERARMIRE °
equity price risk.
At 31st March 2021, if the quoted market prices of the NZE-_—F=F=+—H HEEZFS
trading securities had been 20% higher or lower while all TS IRE Tk N 2k20% i H A B A & 8 i
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit before BAE - KEBEZBFRDS RS hn sk 4
taxation would increase or decrease by HK$102,000 (2020: 102,000/ 0 (—ZE - ZEF : 76,0008 7T) °
HK$76,000).
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of

financial position

o 55 @ bR E 12 (£])
(d) BB FEHR R RO SR

AREHE

Fair value hierarchy NNEES:
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s TREWNAEBEBEMIAZARE 5T
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting ERBRERRIZESHEREESS T EA
period on a recurring basis, categorised. into the three- E\i’%ﬂﬂ%i&%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ?ﬁ CRAERTER
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value FEZ2=HABRz AR EREE - BAREFE
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement DI EBHRTIZEANTHEF EMAEAZ
is classified is determined with reference to the observability BBt NEEYEMET

and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique

as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level e E—RMHE:ARBEFERFAE—
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets WEE B Ec% EARBHAREES
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement BENERM IS AREHERE -
date.

e  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level o FBoLME:AABEEFERE_LH
2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet B AR EBREBEREEINEF R R
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. WRFBRAERTABE 28R - 7]
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data BR HBEREAMBSHEHBRIL NMERZ
are not available. R o

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using s F-MHE: ARBEFREFEAEAT
significant unobservable inputs. AERY HE -

The Group has a team headed by the finance manager ?ﬁ/&jﬂﬁ%&?&ﬁﬁk**i&ﬁﬁ%mﬂiﬁi\u&
performing valuations for the financial instruments, which AR EBREDAFE —TNEEEREME
are categorised into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, REBHBAEBRTBKE g/\%;fz.%gﬁ;_
and trading securities which are categorised into Level 1 T1hE - ZEREZE NS AENERES
of the fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to the RE - BENPRHNFERERN - ZE
chief financial officer and the audit committee. A valuation BeEEaEALBlEE2EH o MOEER
report with analysis of changes in fair value measurement is & I B RS AR BE R AR TN L o Eﬂ%ifﬁ' BEAN
prepared by the team at each interim and annual reporting ERZERHGHENBRENER ti 1T
date, and is reviewed and approved by the chief financial Rl BB RS HE—

officer. Discussion of the valuation process and results with

the chief financial officer and the audit committee is held

twice a year, to coincide with the reporting dates.

2021 2020
—E--f “T-%
Quoted
prices Significant Significant Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBRTSE  EXTBRE EXATUEE NIRRT EAUBR EATUHER
ZHE BARE BAHE 2B N 6 ALK
(%-#) (5=#%) (B=8) BE (8—R) (F=8) (B=8) %
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FET FET FET FAT FAT FAT FET
Recurring fair value ~ £E#ARE
measurements iE
Assets &E
Unlisted equity ’/l/ﬂ A
instruments of fair HEth2EhE
value through other Z#J;ﬁ
comprehensive fET A
income - 2,333 - 2,333 - - - -
Financial assets at fair &A% Ezt A
value through profitor %7
loss SHEE - 7,773 - 7,773 - 14,133 - 14,133
Trading securities EHER 510 - - 510 382 - - 382
Total ek 510 10,106 - 10,616 382 14,133 - 14,515
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of
financial position (Continued)

During the years ended 31st March 2021 and 2020, there
were no transfers between in Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost such as bank deposit with
maturity over three months, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and
bank and other borrowings are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31st March 2021 and 2020 because
of the immediate or short term maturity of these financial
instruments.

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values financial
instruments.

(i)  Trading securities

Fair value is based on closing bid price quoted in an
active market at the end of the reporting period without
any deduction for transaction costs.

(ii)  Equity instruments

Fair value is determined by reference to the bid price
quoted in the second hand market or closing bid price
quoted in an active market of the end of the reporting
period without any deduction for transaction costs.

(iii)  Unlisted equity securities

Fair value is determined by reference to the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

R §5 ER R B 5F

o B IR E IR (4])

(d)

(e)

REBRARERZAREHE ()

F@i_Y_*E& —F=FEZA= +—
HIEFEHE - —BRE_HZEH
E%*ﬁ%k&%ﬁ%im°$%@2ﬁ%
RRMEMRBEERRE  BHAREERZ
FaE -

AEEZ 28 T A7 BRE (B T2 5K AN o 34
BARNER - iR B B = 18R ZRiITFR
ReMATEFEY  BHREMEBERN
BHREMENERLBITREAMESR

HARER - ZE--FR_Z_ZTF=H
S+ RLmEARR, BERZESHTA
BRES s AE B R B AR -

ARERGS

LA 8 5 F 7
EMBRE e

NaREkA NAEZEET

() BHFEE

RAETRIBERET S 2 W HEAE
RIERRTHARERMNZZHA 2T
5RE

(i) RETA

RAETIZEEF RS THBRAEMN
ZHRANENBRELEERT S
Z W B A B R RS ARG A
RGPRAZ TG HEMEE -

(ii})  FF_ RS
ARBEN2ERGFEAEMBLEE

2 R0 72 B A R
ERAEMXNZEBRMETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

34.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 5th August 2019, the Group acquired 70% of the issued share
capital of Reign Abalone Limited, company engaged in gourmet
business. Reign Abalone Limited held 100% equity interests
in Reign Premium Limited and 51% equity interests in Reign
Gourmet Limited (together, the “Reign Abalone Group”).

Since the acquisition, Reign Abalone Group contributed
approximately HK$5,048,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss of
approximately HK$8,478,000 to the consolidated loss for the year
ended 31st March 2020.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue from continuing operations of the Group and the
loss of the Group for the year would have been approximately
HK$801,809,000 and approximately HK$150,304,000,
respectively.

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition
are as follows:

34. ERSH

RZE-NAFNARER TXEEKRBEHLEBR
NAEIBBITRAZT0O%EZ ZAFREERHE
7 o 154875 PR /A 8% B Reign Premium Limited 2
100% P& # X Reign Gourmet Limited~ 51% ¥ #
(el msesEmE]) -

AU M EEAAERZ EERAER
495,048,000 T B E—_E-_EF=A=+—H
IEFE 2R A BB EEE1E48,478,000/8 7L ©

MEHRENET  IAEEREAFEZHEL
BERZEEWAMEERE DR A4801,809,000
7 7T & 49150,304,0005 7T ©

AEmMERACEERABRHINT

Fair value
ARE
HK$’000
FET
Other property, plant and equipment EhE - K R&E 525
Right-of-use asset EREEE 3,032
Intangible asset mVEE 267
Inventory T8 3,263
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H th & I BR 5K 1,925
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEED 315
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b e IR (4,599)
Lease liabilities HEaE (3,150)
Non-controlling interest FEE AR = (473)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value REARBERECA B FEELE 1,105
Goodwill on acquisition W2 HE 19,895
Consideration, satisfied by cash RE ABE I 21,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEFTEE 2 RS M IEFE -
Cash consideration ReKE 21,000
Less: Deposit paid in previous years W BEFER N 2@ (8,000)
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired i : FTliiE 2R & RIR S S E W& & (315)
12,685

WHBEAAR (GFAEMEERIA) OB
121,417,000/ ¢ °

Acquisition-related costs (included in other operating expenses)
amounted to approximately HK$121,417,000.

BEREEFZRKNZEREGAER ZBDE
PEURE - R TRAENB AR -

The goodwill is attributable to future prospect of the business and
the strong customers’ database owned by the business. It will not
be deductible for tax purposes.

B 5 B YR B TR B HI A K48 %8 491,066,0008
T ERTB TR B R A m o

The trade receivables comprise gross contractual amounts due of
approximately HK$1,066,000, of which HK$nil was expected to be
uncollectable at the date of acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER TP 5T
35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. EABHEATRXRS
During the year, the Group had the following transactions with its FA AEEEEREATAUTZRS
related parties:
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEIRASHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEFBFTBERABHH  2EINATFAR
including amounts paid to the Company’s AEEkAETRSFAL (WHMFE10EE)
certain of highest paid individuals as ZBEMOT
as follows:
2020
—ETF
HK$’000
FET
Short-te benefits 15,583
Post-¢ enefits i 54 52
10,407 \ 15,635
ation is included in “s e @BaEst AlBINAI(RIF (D) °

A EAE FF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

35. EABMEALRS (@)

Other transactions (b) HhRS
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B E FET FET
Sales of watch movements to SHEFHEHET
a related company ultimately BCEEZFREERR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin B %ET %‘
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin — R 417 570
Leasing of offices and warehouses to HERAZEREET
three (2020: four) related companies BLEEZETFRERR
ultimately owned by the wife of Ris= 5‘65? il 2 =
Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin (_ = T JUfH)
248 j (i) 6,214 3,852
Leasing of office and warehouse from one RBAGCEEEZETREKER
(2020: one) related company ultimately Rig= 5‘6%? il 2 — &
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and (ZZ2=FF: —[M)@E
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin REIHERAEREE 950 377
Purchase of products from two MG CEEEFRRER
(2020: three) related company ultimately R A5 4= S A 1R il 2
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin _gi TE=H)
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin DA REBE @ (if) 73 2,556
Consultancy fee paid to one (2020: one) THEMEFHBLCEE
related company ultimately ErHEEER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin B ?EE% F‘*ﬁ‘JZ Bl
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin (ZZT=ZTF : —[H)
[EZRENE 505 714
Event rebate income from a related REBIEEE
company ultimately owned by the wife of EFREHEARBCEE
Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin Tz —EREA F AR
BEMKA - 71
Sales of gourmet products to MG CEESFREBE R
three (2020: two) related company ultimately  #51= 5 A4 4% 4| 2 = R
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin (ZEZZF : M)
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin Eﬁ@@ﬁiﬁ%%ﬁé% 36 10
Sales of gourmet products to a daughter MBChEE—R LR
of Mr. Eav Yin HEXREM 21 -
Present value of lease liabilities by MBCREZETHRR
leasing of office and warehouse from wa LG E ?EE% iz
one (2020: one) related company ultimately — —f (=& = —)
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and @ NAHE ”f&
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin AECHESR ,\Ziﬁ@
- Not later than one year —R—FR 751 960
- Later than one year and not — BB -ERTEATF
later than five years - 751
751 1,711
ol o i o SR B PR A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Other transactions (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

Leasing of offices and warehouses

During the years ended 31st March 2021, the Group
leased an office and warehouse space to three (2020:
four) related companies ultimately owned by the wife of
Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin.

As at 381st March 2021, commitments under operating
leases receivable from the companies over which
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin were as follows:

R §5 ER R B 5F

35. EARMEALRS (&)

(b) Efth3z5 (&)

Wit

U]

HERAEREE

REBEE-_ZT-_—F=ZA=+—HLF
EHE AEEHRERAERAER
WFBCAEEETTREEERIBLCE
EEFN = (=224 : U[H) @
F#ENA] ©

RZEZ—F=-—A=+—H0  REL
EHEAHEWRAR (BB CEEET
SRR MABCEEZESZ AR R
REVEEWT ¢

2021 2020

—E=-—F T T

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Not later than one year R—FA 4,586 5,807
Later than one year and BB —FRTEBAF

not later than five year - 4,295

4,586 10,102

Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from 0.25 to 5.08 years (2020: 0.25 to 6.08 years) and
related commitments are included in Note 38.

Purchase of products

The Group purchased of products from the related
companies ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin during the years ended
31st March 2021 and 2020 which represented watches,
watch spare parts and components (including watch
movements), watch accessories and packaging. The
Group also outsourced watch assembly, processing
and after-sales services such as maintenance and
repairs to these related parties. The purchase of
products includes the fees and charges for these
services.

(i)

MEMRE 2 EHEFBHRNT0.25FF
5.08F (ZEZFF : 0.25% £6.084F)
N AR 8 7 7 kA BT 5538 o

RZEZ—FR-ZF-TF=-F=+—
BitFEHE AEERGCLEER
FERBBBELBLCELERFINEER
RIREES  BIEFEK  FHREATY
R AR (B AR F RN ~ SEERECH
kB  REBIINEFHEAE - NT
REBRE  DIRETZEEEA
TRERME ERERBEZER
BHwBERRKE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 SRR Bt 5T
35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35. EAEBREALTRS (8)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) FEALTHGZER
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade and other receivables due from U EEET
three (2020: three) related companies BB NG TR EES 2
ultimately owned by the “E(CE-FF =)
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled BENAE S REMIERR
by Mr. Eav Yin 9,185 7,742
Trade payables due to a related ENGCELEEETREHES
company ultimately owned Ri5C ?Ei? iz
by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and —HEERAREZESER
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 13 -
(d) During the year ended 31st March 2020, loan from a director d #BHE-ZTZZZTF-HA=+—H ¢¢r &
of HK$5,000,000 was fully settled as at 31st March 2020. = B 75,000,000 tER T -_FF = A
Details of the loans were disclosed in Note 28 to the financial =+—H2HEE - BEENFERIB®
statements. KM T8 FE -
36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. SEiiP
The assets pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group were AEEETRITEEEBEENT ¢
as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Land and buildings T RIEF 11,266 11,478
Investment properties wREYE 318,939 222,080
Inventories FE - 62,135
330,205 295,693
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme
for all Hong Kong eligible employees. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees.

The retirement benefit cost for MPF scheme charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss represents contributions
payable to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the MPF scheme.

Employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to
make the required contribution under the scheme.

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessor

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

37.

38.

R §5 ER R B 5F

§7 12 3R i@ il 5t Bl 4t 3R

AEBRMERBAERBEIRY —ERNER
e (RESDE - ZREeFzEERN
SEZEBENRFE  AXEANESTAEE -

{47 A 18 5 R TN ER R TS 2 51 ) A9 R K AR I BK
A HEENAREERRES R BT R HRK
SO i X kS N

EHRBEREZEIDERMETZRAKGEIKE
HZRAREFEATFERFEE - AEEARBT
¥rpzm TP - SURKET SMER R - AEE
TERZR IR EI R 2 B - B RIEET 8 2 R e/
HK e

mEaaRie
fEREES

BHEEE 2 BUARUBES NIRRT WT

2021 2020

—B-—fF —E_TF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FHAT

Not later than one year BB —F 12,043 12,618
Later than one year and not WA —FRTHBBASF

later than five years 23,554 30,758

Over five years HBid A F 329 4,259

35,926 47,635
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B 5 ER 2R Blf 5

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH 39. LIRS EME
FLOWS
Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities AREEIaEENaEZEHER
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TERFANASERARETDELENBECE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BEAe MR EH ARERHEEANEE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for DIREREBELEHRRAEREFEEREE LS
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in SR TERANEAXEME T RS RE
the Group’s consolidated statements of cash flows as cash flows -k

from financing activities.

Interest
Interest payable
payable for loans
Bank  Loans from for from Dividend Lease
loans  adirector bankloans  a director payables liabilities Total

BN EHES
BN EFZER  EHAE  HRME  EARE  HEER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET TEn FE7 FET TEn FET TET

At 1st April 2019 RZE-NENA—AH 130,741 - 536 160 - 234,171 365,608
Changes in financing cash flow gf?ﬁ?é‘w =y
Proceeds from new bank loan ROMERFGHE 236,056 - - - - - 236,056
Repayment of bank loans BERIE m (205,170) - - - - - (205,170)
Proceeds from new director loan HERENFERE - 5,000 - - - - 5,000
Repayment of director loan BEEZEN - (5,000) - - - - (5,000)
Interest paid ERFE - - (4,604) (184) - - (4,788)
Dividends paid Eﬁﬂ%% (19,126) (19,126)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 HE#RE 2 EAHH - - - - - (70,645) (70,645)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2R HERE 2F £ 55 - - - - - (9,334) (9,334)
Non-cash changes I $2E)
Increased in lease liabilities from entering Ml HRE 2 HEE BN

into new leases during the year - - - - - 13,389 13,389
Increased in lease liabilities from WERBARZRES EEM

acquisition of subsidiary - - - - - 3,150 3,150
Lease modification HEBK - - - - - (2,373) (2,373)
Exchange adjustments X AR (224) - @ - - (4,421) (4,647)
Dividends ) = = = - 19,126 - 19,126
Interest expenses HEmRE - - 4,882 24 - 9,334 14,240
At 31st March 2020 R-ZE-FF=A=+-H 161,403 - 812 - - 173,271 335,486
At 1st April 2020 “E-EENA-H 161,403 - 812 - - 173,211 335,486
Changes in financing cash flow BEET TE2E
Proceeds from new bank loan BATH Fiﬁﬁm WA 102,286 - - - - - 102,286
Repayment of bank loans BERTEE (99,603) - - - - - (99,603)
Interest paid BH 8 - - (4,218) - - (4,218)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ 2NAERS 2RSS - - - = = (68,424) (68,424)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ ERAERE 2 FEHH - - - - = (5,775) (5,775)
Non-cash changes HFE &
Increased in lease liabilities from FRFTUHAEL

entering into new leases BEAEEM

during the year - - - - - 8,799 8,799
Lease modification HEBH - - - - - (19,590) (19,590)
Exchange adjustments EXAE 4 - 1 - - 3,604 3,609
Interest expenses FER® - - 3,614 - - 5,775 9,389
COVID-19-related rent concessions ~ COVID-1918E8E ¢ B i - - - - = (1,415) (1,415)
At 31st March 2021 —E--F=R=+-H 164,090 - 209 - - 96,245 260,544

F‘H:i N

=
e
i
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40.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2021 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to the

Group.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4

and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'
Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30th June 2021°

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates!

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-20202

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2023
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2022
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2021

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2021

The directors anticipate that the application of all new and

amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

R §5 ER R B 5F

40. #E_F _—F=-A=+—0BILFECifh

BREBZIETR - TR IFIEEE
ENEE

BEZSHBHRENTIRAY BEGHMLE

ﬂﬁﬂﬁ%lﬁﬁéﬁzé_gi—iiﬂjﬂ——ﬁﬁi
EARER - BXWARRBEIME P RANER R
—IRFTER - ZFE J“%MTT@EE@ZKEI%
BE -

BERBREENEITR  RRAONABE

BREMBHREEAFEIR
EATA

BB IBEHEEAFH -

B8t EAIE 393 -

BEABHEEANET
0 BREYBREER
FARRBEHBREE
RISE169E 2 EFT A

BFRABHEEAEI0F REERABZNARALELE

BUSER 2 =2

MEEENE - FoRR

RERGHENE2E ZRANEELNEITE

ZIBRIA

EEMBRE LS —F-—FAA=-THEZ

ZIBEIAR COVID-19M# & EA°

AR ENEIRZ BRESBARDIERDUR

EHES BELEES (Z22%F)
NAEBETA

BEGLAEIRRES SHARRE
B R

FAR 2 EFIA

BB EAER B ZER

‘;aTK

BB EREI6T mE - BERFZE-BREREHN
/ETZJS KBTS TR IB?

BB EREITR BEGH-BIT—HEOMMKAE
zami

BEVBREEMZEB FEUBRELEN_T-N\EE

“ROTERASNFELE

TR RC=HF - A HA RN FERR AR
2 RZE-F-A-BRZEABNFEERRER
o PAFIE R sk 2 1% B R Y A B R AR K

—E— ARk KRR FEHREER
—HE A — Ak 2 & F A HF R IR AR
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e
z
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEWRHRHS

For the year ended 31st March 2021 #HE—-ZT-—F=A=+—HILFE

RESULTS E 45

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1t—HLEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E—+tF ZT-NF ZE-HhF ZTZTF ZBZ-F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET Fi&T FET FET FET
Revenue EERA 850,218 991,429 934,520 800,051 1,164,981
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AT % F,/ (E518) 31,104 53,003 87,332 (142,270) 91,469
Income tax FTfs i - 9,935 (16,870) (6,452) (85,710)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREEH () 31,104 62,938 70,462 (148,722) 55,759
Equity attributable to FER
owners of the Company ZN/NEIES Y SN 31,104 62,938 70,462 (146,174) 58,542
Non-controlling interests I 122 R 2 - = - (2,548) (2,783)
31,104 62,938 70,462 (148,722) 55,759
(Restated)
(& =7)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share & REAERF]  (FHE) 1.99¢ 8.03¢ 9.03¢ (19,56)¢ 7.84¢
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SSRGS
As at 31st March
R=A=+-—H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—T—+tF ZT-N\F ZE-HhF ZT_TF ZBZ-F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 687,746 656,705 816,225 806,781 814,730
Total liabilities BwaE 257,914 153,932 293,128 465,372 405,988
Net assets BEFH 429,832 502,773 523,097 341,409 408,742
Equity attributable to FERALA
owners of the Company BAEAZER 429,832 502,773 523,097 343,484 413,600
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR RE RS - - - (2,075) (4,858)
Total equity B TR 429,832 502,773 523,097 341,409 408,742

0

1

o

i

EHARAE

SHe

SR S
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